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Report of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Annual Performance for the Year 2008
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In 2008, Thailand was affected by the world
economic crisis. Consequently, the crisis also impacted
the Company’s customers, which are mainly the private
sectors. However, according to the continuous
improvement of business strategy, the Company and its
subsidiary can maintain its market share and
continuously  produced reasonable results. The
consolidated financial performance can be highlighted
with a total revenues of 1,611.70 Million Baht which is
higher than last year 13.51%, 50.91 Million Baht in
profit before paid interest and corporate income tax and
the net profit in the amount of 30.01 Million Baht which
is higher than last year 21.48%.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company and its
subsidiary recorded the total assets in the amount of
798.56 Million Baht, the total debts of 556.30 Million
Baht and the shareholders’ equity in the amount of
242.26 Million Baht.

The Company will still focus to invest in the
Information Technology Business with a policy to

extend its investment to other related and supporting

1 l Annual Report 2008
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businesses to escalate its continuous growth potentials.
The Company will continue to strengthen and add value
to its subsidiary’s business and financial structure to
ensure return on investment.

The Board of Directors would like to take this
opportunity to thank shareholders, clients, employees
and other parties for the trust and confidence and

continuous support to the Company.

The Board of Directors
PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED

2 l Annual Report 2008
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General Information

A a o a o A A J S o w
¥oUTEN : UTHN W3es malulad $1ne (UHsY)
Name of Listed Company : Premier Technology Public Company Limited
UngounsEn : 0107535000320 ( 1A} L. 65)
Company Registration Number : 0107535000320 (Originally Bor Mor Jor 65)
Uszangine : auiiugsnagumsamulugsnama luladasaumea
Type of Business : Investment in Information Technology Business

A a aa s 2 s oA o
ADIUNAY : N 1 wilesaesilosnihin seeniiies 2

QUUAUATUNS UV HUBILEY 1wAlsEna
ATUNWNTIUAT 10250

Head Office : One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet,

Bangkok 10250

TnsAwd : 0-2301-1150

Telephone : 0-2301-1150

Tnsans : 0-2301-1199

Facimile : 0-2301-1199

Homepage : www.Premier-Technology.co.th
nuIanzidou : 142,440,489 1N

Registered Capital : 142,440,489 Baht
fnuiuaiiyieendniends 141,944,471 Yfu

Paid-up Capital : 141,944,471 Shares

519952371 2551 3 l Annual Report 2008 o
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The Company Shareholding

s1eaulszdnl 2551

o

a o Y a da d Jo
U5HN M1 115 aeunumes saaud $10a
Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd.
0105529045455 (1A} 4548/2529)

0105529045455 (Originally 4548/2529)
AlduimamaluTagensaumadmiugsnonuuasy
99 (Total Enterprise Solution and Service Provider)
Total Enterprise Solution and Service Provider

i 1 wiidesaesienihsn seensiies 2
DUUATUATUNT LUWUDILOU 1uAlsze
AFUNNUNIUAT 10250

One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet,

Bangkok 10250

0-2684-8484

0-2684-8484

0-2677-3500 — 2

0-2677-3500 — 2

30,000,000 VYN

30,000,000 Baht

300,000 #u

300,000 Shares

299,994 Hu

299,994 Shares
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Reference
(1) Wienzdaunannsne (1) Share Registrar
V5 quésurhandnning Jszmalne) $1ia Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
pmsamananninduralszmelne it 62 62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building
DUUTFANIYN LUNAADIANY UANADINY Beside Queen Sirikit Nation Convention Center, 4,
AFUNNT 10110 7" Floor, Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok,
TnsdAni 0-2229-2800 In3ens 0-2359-1259 10110
Call center 0-2229-2888 Tel. 0-2229-2800, Fax. 0-2359-1259
Website: http://www.tsd.co.th Call Center : 0-2229-2888
E-mail: contact.tsd@set.or.th Website : http:/www.tsd.co.th
E-mail : contact.tsd@set.or.th
2) funuine Ry (2) Debenture Holders’ Representations
- aidi - - None -
3) AUl (3) Auditors
unanAsIngal Booriudnszna Miss Siraporn Ouaanunkun
é}ﬁ' E)Uﬁiy‘%lﬁ"llﬁ 3844 %50 Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3844 or
uWEJﬁfﬂGFEJ ﬂﬂJﬂJuTQJIGJJIu Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano
Aaoutiaiavii 3930 5o Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930 or
wRaMIAnad WY s Miss Thipawan Nananuwat
FZIJET auﬁtﬁmmﬁ 3459 Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3459
V3t dninau Budan woud 61 e Ernst & Yong Office Limited
01A131AATVAN Gf;:u 33 !,ﬁ"’llﬁ 193/136-137 33" Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex,

519952371 2551 5 l Annual Report 2008 °
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TN3FNN 0-2264-0777, 0-2261-9190

Tnsans 0-2264-0789 - 90, 0-2661-9192
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193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110
Tel. 0-2264-0777, 0-2661-9190

Fax. 0-2264-0789-90, 0-2661-9192

(4) Financial Advisors

- None -

(5) Legal Advisors

- None -

(6) Advisor or Manager under Management Contact

- Business Management and Consulting Contract :
Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.
One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Road, Nongbon,

Prawet, Bangkok 10250
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Financial Summary

(HHE : aMum)

(Unit: Million Baht)

2551/2008 2550/2007 | 2549/2006

Y a
VBNANINNIINY

Financial Information

Funsndsu 798.56 732.10 836.69
Total Assets

Wil AT 556.30 535.52 650.62
Total Liabilities

dmvesdiodu 242.26 196.58 186.07

Total Shareholders’ Equity

51889 nmIveaz UMy 1,591.95 1,399.18 1,440.08

Sales and Services Revenues

51914373 1,611.70 1,419.87 1,532.67
Total Revenues

s tud 414.12 370.76 330.05
Gross Profit

f'ls (nanu) qns 30.01 18.78 64.63

Net Income (Loss)

519952371 2551 7 l Annual Report 2008 °
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Financial Summary (Continued)

(HH® : 21UUIN)

(Unit: Million Baht)

2551/2008 2550/2007 2549/2006
9N INAIUNIIM Y
Financial Ratio
a5 Tudy (%) 26.01 26.50 22.92
Gross Profit Margin
dasm lsgniaesieldsm (%) 1.86 1.74 4.55
Net Profit Margin
fAsIWARDULNUADAIUVOIADOY (%) 13.68 12.91 46.44
Return on Equity
SasWanaLINUABAUNITNET Y (%) 6.65 591 15.04
Return on Total Assets
A'ls (nanu) gnideu (11m) 021 0.13 0.46
Net Income (Loss) per Share (Baht)
Ruiluradeiu (wm) - 0.10 -
Dividends per Share (Baht)
yama iy Baenu WM) 1.71 139 131
Book Value per Share (Baht)
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Nature of Business Operation
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AMIAUNATIHMSUFINIUVUATUINDT (Total Enterprise
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a o =y a [ -4
nannana 14 1adasaund (IT Products) NaANMH

v ad A . . a o d J J
YanliAe (Multimedia Products) WaanaNnsananls
53mJu%’mi%’ﬂymmzﬁzummﬂauﬁamﬁ(System
a o 4
and Data Management Software) LASHANAUN
4 do < a a s
%waaﬁm%g‘ﬂizummiﬁnmmzmmiamﬂﬁ
(Application Software)
2. ngumMsu3ImMs Uszneudie msuims 1133500
a [ 4 = =
naananinalulaga1sauinasioll (Annual
Maintenance Services) N1SUTAITINGTLUY AT
Anovsy uazl¥d11/5AY1 (Training & Consulting
a o 4
Services) N1TUINITLBINYDIE (Outsourcing Services)

a Y 4 .
HAZMSUTMIAIUOUS (Other Services)

The Company’s core business is currently to invest in
the Information Technology Business by investing in
Datapro Computer Systems Co. Ltd., a Total Enterprise
Solution and Service Provider. The Company’s business

operations are divided into two main groups:

1. Hardware and Software Product Group — The
products in this group include IT, multimedia, system &

data management software, and application software.

2. Service Group — The services provided include
annual maintenance, training and consulting, outsourcing

and others.

189145291 2551
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The revenue structure of

the Company and its

subsidiary over the past 3 years is shown below:

e Aum

Unit : Million Baht

anfal (Product) Auilums | % msneru 2551/2008 | % msdenu | 2550/2007 2549/2006
Tag YoIuTEN swld | % | wewsim | 5w0ld | % | swld | %
Operated | % of Company | Revenue % of Company | Revenue Revenue
by Shareholding Shareholding
nauRAAS U /UT M3
maTuTadasaums
IT Product/Service Group
1. ngueanfuaisrsaug DCS 100.00 1210 76.0|  80.00 1,089 77.8 1,153| 80.0
uazgodas
Hardware and Software
Product Group
2. ﬂﬁjnmiiﬁmi DCS 100.00 382 24.0 80.00 307| 21.9 283 19.7.
Service Group 0
s ldmmuaveangy 1,592 | 100.0 1,399 100.0 1,440 | 100.0
naafas/usmamalulad
IaUNA
Total IT Product/Service
Group Revenue
i’JN‘V;I’IQ‘HNﬂ 1,592 | 100.0 1,399 | 100.0 1,440 | 100.0
Total Revenues
HUWLH Note :
DCS = vSHN ad s aeuiiuaes Fafud $iia DCS = Datapro Computer Ssytems Co., Ltd.
MUAMIZMIHVITY 1AL MITANIHAASUN W30 As the core business of the Company and its
UTINTVOIVTEN ﬁmi"‘uqaﬁ%é"lﬁ'u?mﬁmﬂuia‘é subsidiary is being a Total Enterprise Solution Provider,
ﬁﬁﬁuLﬂﬁﬁ1W§u‘qiﬁi]LL“]J“]Jﬂi‘].I’Ni]S Ef;uﬂu‘qsﬁi] competitive conditions and provision of products and
wénluilvgihuweausin agyldaail service is as follows:
s1e0uszd) 2551 | 10 l Annual Report 2008 o
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Ll“ri'ﬂ‘lﬂa(NECTEC, National Electronics and Computer
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Competitive conditions within the industry

The trend of information technology industry still has
a continuous growth rate. For the news release in March
2009, on the survey of Information Technology
expenditure in Thailand for the year 2008, by the SIPA
(Software  Industry  Promotion Agency (Public
Organization)), ATSI (The Association of Thai Software
Industry), ATCI (The Association of Thai ICT Industry),
NECTEC (National Electronics and Computer
Technology Center), and other related IT organization,
reported for the value of the information technology
market was 223,506 million Baht, which was comprised
of hardware of 75,720 million Baht, software of 62,937
million Baht, services of 24,981 million Baht, and Data
Communication Equipments 59,868 million Baht, with
the growth rate of 11.88% from the year 2007 and

estimated growth rate in 2009 will be 5.86%.

Although the trend of the technology market has the
continuous growth rate, the Company is still in the
competitive circumstance at all times with the business
operators both inside the country and abroad. Therefore,
the Company differentiate itself continuously from other
business operators. Some of the business operators
engage in either hardware software, or services because
there are limitations for each of them. Therefore, the
Company creates different points so that it will be a
“Total Enterprise Solution and Service Provider” with
the best quality for the customers continuously to cover
all hardware, software, and services. In addition, to

anticipate the trend of future technology is important for

competition to prepare to provide total and continuous

189145291 2551
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complete services to the customers, and on time to meet
the changes and the needs in the businesses of the
customers, with the efficient, continuously trained, and
much experienced staff. Therefore, the total information
technology service is the important strategy to be the

leader in this aspect.

Provision of products and service

Because the Company is the total information
technology service provider, the staff who provide
services are very important. The Company has invested
to create and keep certificate staff by training both inside
and outside of the organization, built computer center
with state of the art equipment continuously to train and
develop working system for provision of service to
customers. In addition, the Company hire the experts in
new technology to transfer knowledge and expertise to
the staff of the company in order to build confidence to
customers who use service of the Company. And
development human resources to conform to the different
type of technology that customer desired.

The Company is a direct importer and a distributor of
various well-known products such as IBM, Hewlett-
Packard, Cisco, Sanyo, Canon, ORACLE, Information
Builders, SAP, and many others. Products are imported
from Japan, U.S.A., France and Great Britain. In
addition, in order to meet with the changes in technology
and the need of the customers, the Company will procure
more new products at all times. In the year 2007, the
Company procure more products to distribute, which is
comprised of SOA, RFID, and products on internet

infrastructure, in addition to the old products for many

kinds, business intelligence software package, business

189145291 2551
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efficiency software package, and enterprise content
management solution, etc. In the year 2008, the
company has added multiple products, which included

instant software (Corporate Performance Management)

with Microsoft (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

In order to add value from the information
technology products which the Company provides
services, the Company invests in development of
application software in order to be in accordance with the
need of the customers, which is comprised of the
Thailand Tax Localization System for JD Edwards
EnterpriseOne & World, Cheque Control System for JD
Edwards EnterpriseOne and World, Thailand Payroll Tax
Localization for PeopleSoft Enterprise and JD Edwards
EnterpriseOne, and Hotel Management Analytic
Application (HMAA), Electronic Document Warchouse
and Patient

Management Relationship

Management(PRM).

In additional, to provide convenience in provision of
service to the group of high-technology industry, the
Company has developed business model "FASTech" by
the enterprise resource planning software package SAP

All-in-One which the Company received suggestion from
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experts engage in this industry and passed the
examination for certification from SAP (Thailand)
Limited. From this model, the customers can see all of
its business operation before implementation, and has the
short period and fast implementation for customers to

receive return on investment (ROI).

As the Company has a variety of products and has
served its customers for a long time, the risk of losing its

service and dealership is low.
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Major external and internal factors that may have
affected the Company’s operations can be summarized
as follows:

1. Risk from Technology Changes

Information Technology has developed and changed
rapidly and continuously. In the year 2008, there are
changing in Information Technology such as Green
Technology, the development of Chip architecture,
Technology for OLED (Organic Light Emitting Diode)
display, Services Technology in RFID (Radio Frequency
Identification), 3G, Wi-Fi/Wi-Max Software Technology
for SaaS (Software as a Services), SOA (Service
Oriented Architecture) and for mobiles.

Because the Company is the Total Enterprise
Solution and Service Provider, the Company anticipates
the risk in procurement of hardware and software which
is current, meets the change of technology, and is
suitable for the requirements of its customers. Therefore,
the Company arranged to have its personnel study the
changes in order to make them technology experts at all
times, including to take examinations to obtain

certificates to meet with current technology. This will
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allow the Company to provide appropriate services and
to add value for the customer from the current

technology.

2. Risk from Competition

The Company is a dealer of hardware and software
products for major vendors who continue to increase the
number of their resellers in order to maintain and win
more market share. This has resulted in serious
competition among business operators in the same
industry and, most importantly, decreased profit. In
order to reduce this risk and differentiate itself from other
dealers, the Company has shifted its business from being
just a hardware and software product dealer to a Total
Enterprise Solution and Service Provider and to adjust
the service provision part to expand continuously in
order to differentiate the company from other dealers.
This involves:

® Enhance product lines to cover customer
enterprise-wide requirements in each sector sto
meet current technology.
Developing application software and business
intelligence software to add value consistent with
the needs of businesses in Thailand. Examples are
tax, cheque and payroll system software solutions
which interface with ERP software, and analytical
software which supports hotel and hospital
management decisions.
Providing a comprehensive information technology
outsourcing service which includes hardware,
software and services for those customers who do

not wish to manage their own information

technology.
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3. Risk from Dependency on Human Resources

Human resources are an essential factor in operating
an information technology business. Professionals with
specialized knowledge and expertise are needed to
provide consultancy and develop successful business in
order to meet with the changes in information
technology, which is continuous at all times as stated in
Clause 1, and the high competition, as stated in Clause 2,
which are the important matters that the Company pays
much attention to. Hence, the Company’s policy is to
give priority to personnel management and to provide
stable career paths. It regularly organizes training and
seminar to develop its staff’s skills and potential. In
order to maintain good morale and retain its personnel,
the Company has set appropriate remuneration plans
which are competitive with other companies in the same
industry. In addition, it has created a pleasant working
environment and appropriate welfare offerings, as well
as fostering good relationships with and between its
employees.

For the year 2008 the company has established a
partnership with Nippon Unica Systems Co., Ltd. from
Japan, to operate business in Thailand for information
technology and services development for both domestic
and international customers. The joint venture of
Advanced Cyber Technology Co., Ltd. has set strategic
partnership with educational institutes in human

resource planning and building to conform the needs of

both domestic and international customers in the future.

4. Risk of the global economy crisis.

Since the Company's customers are private

organizations. The most affected e.g.  automotive

industry, financial institute, electronics industry and the
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tendency to cutting down the budget in the expense. The
investments for new business in Thailand are likely to
slow down by a stray investment to other countries.
Chance of making the company added new customers in
less.

The company is focusing on maintaining technology
systems to the existing customers and partners with
organizations specialized in software development
including software development in languages with

different versions to conform to the needs of customers.
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1 Waﬂffu 1. Shareholders
1.1 ﬂdnﬁﬁaﬁ'uﬁﬁaﬁ’uqu 10 78450 1.1 A group of 10 shareholders hold the largest

proportion of shares

o

=3 B YA ' A
FYASLIDYANIINUANDD uiWﬂiﬁﬂJ 10 918090 Ny

s

A List of the top 10 shareholders whose names
A = COE = 4 o A . .
%aﬂﬁﬂgmmmuauumﬂqaanu U IUN T UNIINY appeared in the Register of Shareholders as of January 7,

2552 Hasan i 2009 are shown in the table below:

fo NuIUGU % MIDNOHM
Name Number of Shares % of share holding
1. w9 uanng NAATT 64,259,216 4527
Mrs. Vimolthip Phongsathorn
- W Fuanng NIATS 64,259,176
Mrs. Vimolthip Phongsathorn
- WY TS WIATS 40
Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn
2. usEm whiled flwdu ualaea $afa 21,871,708 15.41
Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.
3. wie and WAFES 11,341,998 7.99
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn
4. wnan sgsead nOBUNIANA 5,180,690 3.65
Miss Chadarat Korintarasak
5. wwAnnsal iloand 4,604,336 3.24
Mrs. Jiraporn Nuangplee

s1eaulszdnl 2551
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fo NuIUGU % MIDNOHM
Name Number of Shares % of share holding
6. UG AULTY NINTTUINT 3,757,297 2.65
Mr. Sinchai Taveeporntanapat
7. Weetiud AN 1,684,000 1.19
Mr. Ananta Srikurecha
8. WA AUNT AU 954,000 0.67
Miss Somporn Sritumma
9. wa. 3T DERRMTED 886,700 0.62
Miss Wilaiwan Chatbhumirugee
10. w1 ozan AIuan 820,100 0.58
Mrs. Piyajit Srinuandee
smfoorusalva 115,360,045 81.27
Total
vanema ;- uauiu ﬁ“]Jé}ﬁﬂﬁuﬁﬁﬂlﬁlﬂl}f)ﬂﬁuﬁ1mﬁﬁ3i1élfﬁiuufga1ri5ﬂﬂ§WéLLﬁ$ﬁﬁWﬂWﬁﬂﬂ§W5‘W.ﬁ. 2535 41931 258

Note : Number of shares, include the shareholders under the Securities and Exchange Act 2535 Section 258

1.2 ﬂ’cjnéjﬁﬁlﬁuﬁ?ﬂiﬁﬂjﬁﬁuﬂﬂaﬁlﬁﬂiiﬂiﬁ)ulﬁlgh 1.2 A group of major shareholders are related to
4

s lumsuSmsIamsusEniaeil those who take part in managing the Company:

Bo Usznougsnaiszian uﬂﬂaﬁ!ﬁﬂﬂmﬁ’u
Name Type of Business Related Person
Operated
1w dvaind  waess a7 Ao WIBNTeT WIATS
Mrs. Vimolthip ~ Phongsathorn - Wulsesunssums
Husband is Mr. Vichien
Phongsathorn, Chairman.
2. e el NWIADT fle Ao W1e3Tus weAss
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn - Wusesunssums
Elder Brother is Mr. Vichien
Phongsathorn, Chairman.
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A a A o
¥o Usznouganaiszian ynnafinelaenu
Name Type of Business Related Person
Operated

@

3. USE whiled Tl uadilaea $1da | uSmssansgsfenas | T uwTiTes warss wie 33and
Premier Fission Capital Co.,Ltd, MIAINUY WIATT unmqﬁwéf L?J‘EJN
Management Services j_'ﬂi%ﬁ’ uay quim%ﬂqmﬂ%@m
and investment in other WunssunsT
companies. Chairman and Managing Director
is Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn.
Directors are Mr. Viwat
Phongsathorn, Mrs. Duangthip

Eamrungroj and Mr. Surade;j

Boonyawatana.
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2. Management

2.1 Management Structure

The Company has two sets of directors — the
Company’s Board of Directors and Audit Committee.
Following are details of the two sets of directors:

2.1.1 Board of Directors
As at December 31, 2008 the Company’s Board

of Directors consists of 8 directors as follows:

1. WeNFes NG R UseH1UNITUNI
Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn Chairman
2. Wi Tand NIADT NITUMIUAZNTTUMITHIAMT
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn Director and Managing Director
3. UNANANG weougalsnd AFTUMSI
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj Director
4. WYgIaY umﬂﬁfmu NITUNIT
Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana Director
5. wwlinssmd WugUTIean NIINMIDATY
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong Independent Director
6. UEYAY “Iﬂafﬂuuﬁ' NITUMIATZIaZsEHUATIUMIATINADY
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
7. g8 %WHG]‘E]‘EMWQQ ﬂiillﬂ"liafﬁglmgﬂiillfﬂiﬁi'li]ﬁﬂll
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul Independent Director and Audit Committee
8. WY Tasmaynid NIIUMIDATLUALNTINNIATIVNADY
Mr. Katiya Greigarn Independent Director and Audit Committee
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De

Mrs. Suchada Samaisut acts as Secretary to the Board of
Directors and corporate secretary.

Scope of Authorities and Duties of the Board of
Directors

1. Manage the Company according to the laws,
objectives and articles of association as well as the
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, except for those
matters requiring approval of the shareholders’ meeting
before implementation. Examples are matters that need
the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting as specified
by the law, related transactions, and purchase and sale of
major assets as specified by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand or other government units.

2. Assign one or more of the directors or other people to

act on their behalf.

3. Appoint the Audit Committee Directors and other
committees.
4. Review and give consent to important matters such as
policies, plans and budgets, management structure,
management authority and any transactions specified by
the Stock Exchange of Thailand or the laws.
5. Supervise the management’s operations to make sure
they follow the approved policies, plans and budget.

In 2008, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5
meetings and the record of Directors’ attendance is

summarized as follows:

FIHINAUSNTITINNT

Director’s Name

M3 In sz /
msdszyunaving (a39)

Attendance / Total Meetings

1. wenFYs WIATS 4/5
Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn
2. wedand WIATS 5/5
Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn
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IYNNAMLNITHMNS msnganszagu /
Director’s Name msﬂiz‘quﬁ‘;mm (ﬂ%vlﬂ)
Attendance / Total Meetings

3. UNANANG eugalsnd 4/5

Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj
4. WegTIeY YA 5/5

Mr. Surade;j Boonyawatana
5. wolsnssend WURUITOa 5/5

Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong
6. WY FAGTUUR 5/5

Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
7. WegNY Iuaganna 5/5

Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
8. wwiae Tnsmayanl 5/5

Mr. Katiya Greigarn

auznssumivsinyailgiulseneudlonssums

da5e 4 My Usznouaie

The present Company’s Board of Directors consists of

4 independent directors.

1. WA FAGTUUR
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
2. AELERE) IAuanUINa
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
3. et Tnsnmayan
Mr. Katiya Greigarn
4, welinssal WugUs098
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong

o o 4

Smsmnaailunisfadennisunissasziiu
vSEmRvsanquauiaaiuuTouiedisiualae
AULNITUMIMAUNAINTNIUazAaArSINS NN
Usznelneg drunszuaumsassnieg 1955msad

Y 1 4 v Y ad vV
"1ﬂﬂan"lﬂumma 2.2 ABNIFUANANDNITINNIFLUAS

Y a

AUSH13 W11 39

For the independent director selection criteria, the
Company considers the qualifications according to the
policy set by the Security Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The nominating procedure
is practiced as mentioned in Clause 2.2 — Criteria for

Appointing Directors and Managements page 39.
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The Company has specified the definition of
independent directors as follows:

1. Holding shares representing not more than 5% of
shares with voting rights of the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies or any

juristic persons with a potential conflict of interest.

2. Not being an employee, staff member or salaried
advisor or controlling person of the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies or any
juristic person with a potential conflict of interest.
3. Not being a person who has a blood or legally
registered relationship in the form of fatherhood,
motherhood, spouse, siblings, offspring, including
spouse of siblings of the executives, major shareholders,
controlling person or persons who are about to be
nominated as executives or controlling persons of the
Company or its subsidiaries.
4. Having no business relationship with the Company,
parent company, subsidiaries, associated companies or
any juristic persons with a potential conflict of interest,
which may interrupt his independent discretion and not
having any characteristics that may affect the giving of
independent opinions on the Company’s operations
Term of the directors

The articles of association of the company provide
that at every ordinary meeting of the shareholders, one-
third of the directors, or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to one-third must retire
from office. The directors retire during the first and
second years following the registration of the company
shall be drawn by lots. In every subsequent year the

directors who have been longest time office shall retire.

A retiring director is eligible for re-election.
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2.1.2 AMZNIINNITASIDEDL
& UM 31 FUNAY 2551 UTHNUAVLATTUNG

@390V 3 MU 1sznoudie

2.1.2 Audit Committee
As at December 31, 2008 the Company’s Audit

committee consists of 3 directors as follows:

1. Wegaw MAGTUUN Uszmunssumsninnaoutaziiludi
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont anuiuazlszaumsai lumsao MU
MU
Chairman of Audit Committee with
financial report review experience
2. Wegae 5mqum1qa NITUNITATIVNDUY
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul Audit Committee
3. Wedhn Tnsmayasd NITUMIATIVAOU
Mr. Katiya Greigarn Audit Committee
YourAs NN Scope of Authorities and Duties

1. aeumulivsiniineanunianmstuediagndes
azilameieane

2. asumulnusEniiszuumsniugunelunazms
asnaeumelufifanumingaasiilseandua

3. aoumumsdfiavesusin iy llawnguune
Ndrendnninduazaaiananning defmuaveq
ARIANANNTNG w%’aﬂawm&ﬁtﬁ'ﬂ’;%’mﬁmiﬁi}ﬁum
VI

4. Wosanda@en Lmzmuau@hﬁyaé'aauﬁﬂﬁmm
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1. Review that the Company’s financial reports to ensure
accuracy and transparency.

2. Review that the Company has appropriate and
effective Internal Control and Internal Audit systems.

3. Review that the Company complies with the
Securities and Exchange Act, the rules and regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other laws related to
the Company’s business.

4. Consider, select and propose for appointment the of

the auditor and the auditing fee.

5. Consider the disclosure of the Company’s information
in case there are connected transactions or transactions
that possible conflict of interests to enhance accuracy,
transparency and adequacy.
6. Perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board of
Directors which must be approved by the Audit
Committee.

In 2008, the Audit Committee convened a total of 4

meetings, the record of Directors’ attendance is

summarized as follows:
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FYMUAMUSNITUNITATINDOU miﬁ’ﬁﬁ"mﬂizqu /
Director’s Name m‘;ﬂi:‘quﬁzmm (ﬂ%ﬂ)
Attendance / Total Meetings

1. wwgau FAGTUUR 4/4

Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
2. Wy IauaguINa 4/4

Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
3. wwiae Tnsmayaul 4/4

Mr. Katiya Greigarn

A Y A

2.1.3 8BDHUINT

g
a o 1A @ o A Aawv o A
‘]_IS‘HVIIIIJII‘WUﬂQ1u‘]J53§]1 FUHDNINUIENAUUU

4

gsnamsaanuluuiindes nazldiznisiidia

Y a o

Y @ a
(Outsource) NuMUYFHarmsdu Inuiundey

FSURAFDUIANLNY
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2.1.3 Names of Executives
The company does not have full-time employees since
it only invests in the subsidiary. All finance and

accounting work has also been outsourced to subsidiary.
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Details of Directors as at December 31,2008

1. MeUTYST WIABS
Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn
NIIUMIANS MDA

Authorized Director

01g(1)
521
ARANINSANY
- USaanaiimnssumans ainanssuilunassioag
YTy In a1 10511553509910 Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute, Troy, New York, U.S.A.
dadumsaeduluuism (%)
45.27067%
anudnitusmenseunsiszrnaduims

4

fueaued il WeRss NITUMIANSILIIAIUIN
HAZNITUMIHIAMS

Uszaumsainanluszes 5 Udouras

2 @ ] 1 a o 4
Pogiiu : nssumsgdams ) nquusEmnsidies

fagiiu : nssums viinlunguusinnsiied

Pogifu : nssums v, Foelmi Tusiunans

4
o R 4
‘i‘]ﬁm;uu :NITUMST VI Mal 5UTIU

Age(years)
52 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Nuclear Engineering and Master's
degree of Business Administration, Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute, Troy, New York, U.S.A.
% Share in Company
45.27067%
Family Relationship between Directors
Elder brother of Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn, Authorized
Director and Managing Director
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : President & CEO, Premier Group of
Companies
- Present : Director, Companies in the Premier Group of
Companies
- Present : Director, Chiangmai Night Bazaar Co., Ltd.

- Present : Director, Calbee Tanawat Co., Ltd.

s1eaulszdnl 2551
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2. W e weAss

Mr. Viwat Phongsathorn

NITUMINSIUIVANNNIAZNTTHMIHIAMS

Authorized Director and Managing Director

018(1))
3

a =

AUIAUNNNIANY

Q

51

a a o a @ a
- Sges  aeeuiames  urnImeaerasIan,

@

A1TFOINTM
- mysusHUNUIMHINALazinyzmMadlunsTums
(DAP) 31 19/2004 MNENANTUATNADNTUNITUNT

v5¥n Ine (10D)

- miﬂmuwﬁﬂqm Understanding Foundamental of

Financial Statements(UFS) 1na@uaudatdIuanu
n3suMsu3En lne (10D) Ju 12/2007
- miﬂmuwﬁﬂqm Finance for Non-Finance Director
(FND) anauaudasyanniunssumsusenineg
(I0D) Ju 38/2007
- miamwﬁnqm Director Certification Program
(DCP) NpEANdUaTHanUATsUMIVTEN Iny
(I0D) 34 96/2007
dadumsteduluuism (%)
7.99045 %
anudniusmenseundIsTHNgUIMS

WoeueauediTos warss n3suMIFNS AN

d o Ny (Y]
Uszaumsaiauluszes 5 Ydounaa
@ Yo 9 a 4
- iy : nssumsdgaams ve. e Tis aeuiinnes

a <] J
FAANT

Age(years)
51 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Computer Science, University of
Florida, US A
- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),

Group 19/2004 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

- Training Understanding Foundamental of Financial

Statements(UFS) Group 12/2007 from I0OD

- Training Finance for Non-Finance Director (FND)

Group 38/2007 from IOD

- Training Director Certification Program (DCP) Group
96/2007 from IOD

% Share in Company
7.99045 %
Family Relationship between Directors
Younger brother of Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn,
Authorized Director
Working Experience — past 5 years

- Present : Managing Director, Datapro Computer

Systems Co., Ltd.
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- Present : Director, Premier Planner Co., Ltd.

- March 2002 - Present : Director, Premier Resort Krabi

ﬂizﬁ Co., Ltd.
- ‘ﬂi]i]ﬂ’u :NITUNT V. daaea lsand (ﬂizmﬁ - Present : Director, Allied Products (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Tn &) - Present : Director, Premier Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.
- ﬂ‘ﬂ%q JU : NSTUMT VNI, w‘%xﬁﬂﬂﬁumaﬂwﬁ - Present : Director, Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.
- ﬂi]i] U TTUMS V. w%’gﬁﬂ{?iﬁu unlilaoa - Present : Director, Broadband Technology Services Co.,
- ilagtiu: n3sums va. vseauuLs maluTad Ltd.
L%E]ﬁf a - Present : Director, Professional Training Services Co.,
- flogtiu ¢ nsswms ve. Tdswladunua msudie Ltd.
o3I
3. wamaiing Beagelsan
Mrs. Duangthip Eamrungroj
NIIUMIANS NN
Authorized Director
mq(‘ﬂ) Age(years)
539 53 years
qmg@mamiﬁnm Education Background

a aa J t4 a [
ﬂiﬂ]uﬂﬁfﬂﬁ AFAINTIUATAT JWAINTUNHIINGIRY

a

- YSaanInennusmsgsnuminndesssumans

- Diploma in Clinical Organizational Psychology 910

INSEAD, France

MIpUTHUNMNNHTALasinue e unIsums
(DAP) 31 22/2004 MINENANTUATNADITUNTTUNS

v5¥n Ine (10D)

s1eaulszdnl 2551

- Bechelor's degree of Mechanical Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University

- Master's degree of Business Administration, Thammasat
University

- Diploma in Clinical Organizational Psychology from
INSEAD, France

- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),

Group 22/2004 from IOD.
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dadumsaeduluuism (%)
0.00013 %

anudniusmenseundIsTHNUS IS
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- flagiiu : nssums v5Emlunquusinnsites

% Share in Company
0.00013 %
Family Relationship between Directors
- None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
- February 2001 - Present : Group Corporate Director,
Corporate Affairs, Premier Group of Companies
- Present : Director, Companies in the Premier Group of

Companies

4. WEYIAY Youer I
Mr. Suradej Boonyawatana
NIINMIFHS MDA

Authorized Director

01g(1)
581
a =g
ARAMINSANY

- ﬂ?igfgm? Industrial Technology, Eastern Washington
State University, U.S.A.

f‘ﬂiE]TJﬁllTJ‘WUW]‘Ifiﬁ1ﬁllﬁ$ﬁﬂ1ﬁl$ﬂﬁlﬂl&ﬂiihﬂﬁ

(DAP) 31 19/2004 1NEINANSUATUADINTUNITUNT

1580 Ineg (10D)

ﬂﬁEﬁJﬁJ‘Vrﬁﬂtjﬁi Finance for Non-Finance Director

(FND) 910 10D 31 12/2004

miE)TJﬁﬂJﬂﬁﬂQ'ﬂi Director Certification Program
(DCP) 910 10D §U 97/2007
daadumsteRuluu3Em (%)

0.02114 %

s1eaulszdnl 2551

Age(years)
58 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Industrial Technology, Eastern
Washington State University, U.S.A.
- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),

Group 19/2004 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

- Training on Finance for Non-Finance Director (FND)
Group 12/2004
- Training Director Certification Program (DCP) Group
97/2007 from IOD
% Share in Company

0.02114 %
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- None -

- Present :
- Present :

- Present :

- Present :

- Present :
- Present
- Present :
- Present :
- Present :

- Present :

Ltd.

Family Relationship between Directors

Working Experience — past 5 years

Director, Premier Motors Co., Ltd.
Director, Premier Products Co., Ltd.
Director, Premier Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Director, Premier Home Appliance Co.,Ltd.

Director, Imperial Eagle Co., Ltd.

: Director, Premier Planner Co., Ltd.

Director, Premier Resort Krabi Co., Ltd.
Director, Kulthorn Premier Co., Ltd.
Director, Premier Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.

Director, Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.

- 20 June 2006 - Present : Director, Raya Heritage Co.,

189145291 2551
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5. u]ﬂﬂ%ﬂi‘iﬂu WHTUIIEIN
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong
NIINMIOAIY

Independent Director

018(1))
551
AMIANINMSANY

a a J
- 153 IAINTTNRAAIMNTIN YNNIl

UNINGaY

a a G4
YSyanInImnssugaamms gwiansal

UNIINGaY

a a J 4 a a
YsyanTnmalsdanans (UTmIgIng)

a o J
UMIINYAYTITUAITAT

‘]EﬂJuﬂJn?Jﬂ Doctorate of Metallurgical Engineering

unanede Taned Uszmaniju

N1IOUT Mﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁi Director Certification Program
(DCP) 911 10D U 105/2008
dadaumsdeduluuisn (%)

- il -

v o 1Y
ﬂ'JH»Iﬁﬂwuﬁﬂ%iﬂﬁﬂllﬂﬁ353ﬁ'j1\1§§ﬂ%ﬁ15

d o U
Uszaumsahanuluszes 5 Udounaa
- flagiiu : MlSnwdsunems dninausiann
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Inemaasuazing lu ladurana

Age(years)
55 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Industrial Engineering
Chulalongkorn University
- Master's degree of Industrial Engineering
Chulalongkorn University
- Master's degree of Business Administration Thammasart
University
- Doctorate of Metallurgical Engineering Tokyo
University, Japan
- Training on Director Certification Program (DCP)
From IOD
% Share in Company
- None -
Family Relationship between Directors
- None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : Director’s Advisor, National Science and

Technology Development Agency

189145291 2551
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6. ERAN WALNUUN
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
N3IUMIDATTHATNITUMIATIVAO

Independent Director and Audit Committee

A v A

Y

- USaaneivaiiada uininodesssumnanas

YsaianeImdlydemansiiadia
UHIINOAUTTTNMERT

- nseusuunumnihinazinysmandunssums
(DAP) 31 37/2005 MINAIANFUATUADNTUNTIUNT
u5¥n Ine (10D)

v 1 A gy a
awmummm;uiuumn (%)
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- flagiiu: nssums ve. nQuUINIMTH

a

Age(years)
72 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Accounting, Thammasat University
- Bachelor's degree of Business Administration,
Thammasat University
- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),

Group 37/2005 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

% Share in Company
- None -
Family Relationship between Directors
- None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
= 6 July 1993 - Present : Chairman of the Board Premier
Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.
- Present : Director, Chiangmai Night Bazaar Co., Ltd.
- Present : Director and Managing Director, Five Tor Co.,
Ltd.
- Present : Independent Director and Chairman of Audit
Committee, Singer Thailand Public Co., Ltd.
- 20 July 2007-Present : Director, Premier Marketing
Public Co., Ltd.

- Present : Director, Suvitdumri Group Co., Ltd.

s1eaulszdnl 2551
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7. WY INUAGINN
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
ﬂiﬁli'niaﬁiz!!ﬂzﬂiiﬂﬂ]iﬁi?i}ﬁﬂﬂ

Independent Director and Audit Committee

mq(’?]) Age(years)
687 68 years
ﬂmg@memsﬁnm Education Background
i1

- ?ﬂluﬂJWl?ﬂTi Anpmans wasuasunsilsa - Bachelor's degree of Education Srinakarintaraviroj

University
- ﬂ?ﬁ@ﬂi%ﬂﬂﬂ11’lﬁﬁ1ﬁllﬁ$ﬁﬂlﬁl$ﬂ?ﬁlﬂuﬂiiNﬂﬁ

- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),
(DAP) 31 37/2005 MNAIANFAUATUADNTUNTTUNT

Group 37/2005 by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)
u5¥n Ine (10D)

dadaumsdeduluuisn (%)

% Share in Company
-1y - - None -
v o [ a
ﬂ?1uﬁuwuﬁ‘mﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂi’Jizﬂ’hﬂlﬁﬂi?ﬂi Family Relationship between Directors
=
- aidi - - None -

Uszaumsaanluszes 5 Udouras

Working Experience — past 5 years
- flagaiu : MlSnwdase ganalidToe e uaz

- Present : Independent Advisor Consulting,
aamm1Jmﬁmnazuumau?wwﬁmammu/

development, design and layout service business for
Juidew/ming azmitaesdns

compensation/salary/wages/organization management

system
- iy : pssums ue. Smamsuis

- Present : Director, Retail Training Co., Ltd.
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8. MguneN "lnimzyms

Mr. Katiya Greigarn
NIINMIDAIZUALNTINNIIATIVAD

Independent Director and Audit Committee

018(1))
561
AMIANINMSANY

- YSaanaiimnssy it ymasnssivmineds

- ‘]J?ElJuﬂﬁIﬂaﬁ?lﬂiinleﬁW University of Missouri-

Rolla, U.S.A.

Ysgayueninanisu I University of Missouri-
Rolla, U.S.A.

fnﬁE]Uﬁlm“ﬂllWl‘l/iﬁ1ﬁllﬁ$ﬁﬂ‘lﬁl$ﬂﬁlﬂl&ﬂﬁihﬂﬁ

(DAP) §% 37/2005 910 10D

N1IDUT Mﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁi Financial Statements for Director

(FSD) 317 3/2008 910 10D

N1IOUT Mﬁﬁﬂqcﬂi Director Certification Program
(DCP) Jufi 110/2008 911 10D
daadumsteRuluu3Em (%)

aidi -

anudniusmenseundIszHNgUIMS

Uszaumsaihanduszes 5 Udounds
- flogiu : n3sumsuasdsansiiall ve.in? Sian
nsoiind
- Hagriu : nssums angaamnssunialszmalng
- Hagriu : Usesmnqugaamns sy lliuay

adg a d ]
IANNIDUNT ﬁﬂ"IQGIﬁWWﬂiiilu‘ﬂﬂﬂiglfﬂﬁhl‘ﬂﬂ
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Age(years)
56 years
Education Background
- Bachelor's degree of Electrical Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University
- Master's degree of Electrical Engineering, University of
Missouri-Rolla, U.S.A.
- Doctorate of Electrical Engineering, University of
Missouri-Rolla, U.S.A.
- Training on Director Accreditation Program (DAP),
Group 37/2005 from IOD.
- Training on Financial Statements for Director (FSD),
Group 3/2008 from IOD
- Training on Director Certification Program (DCP),
Group 110/2008 from IOD
% Share in Company
- None -
Family Relationship between Directors
- None -
Working Experience — past 5 years
- Present : Director and General Manager, KV Electronics
Co., Ltd
- Present : Director, The Federation of Thai Industries
- Present : Chairman, The Electrical and Electronics

Industry Club
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- Present : Director, Electrical and Electronics Institute
(EEI), Ministry of Industry

- Present : Director, Nanotechnology Center(NANOTEC)

- Present : Director, National Electronics and Computer
Technology Center (NECTEC)

- Present : Director, Telecommunications Research and
Industrial Development Institute (TRIDI)

- Present : Director, Chok-Udom Property Co., Ltd.

- Present : Director, Sub-Udom Property Co., Ltd.

- Present : Director, Makpha Real Estate Co., Ltd.
- Present : Director, Viptel Co., Ltd.
- Present : Independent Director and Chairman of Audit

Committee, Premier Marketing Public Co., Ltd.
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List of Companies in the Premier Group of Companies

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
217.
28.
29.
30.

31.

IR

. U9,
. U9,
. UA.

. UA.

1.
1.
1A
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1A
1A
9.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
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1A
V9.
9.
9.
1A

9.
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1. Premier Fission Capital Co., Ltd.
2. Premier Enterprise Public Co., Ltd.
3. Premier Capital (2000) Co., Ltd.
4. Premier Inter Leasing Co., Ltd.
5. Premier Brokerage Co., Ltd.
6. Premier LMS Co., Ltd.
7. Premier Marketing Public Co., Ltd.
8. Premier Canning Industry Co., Ltd.
9. Premier Frozen Products Co., Ltd.
10. P.M. Food Co., Ltd.
11. Premier Motors Co., Ltd.
12. Premier Products Co., Ltd.
13. Premier Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
14. Premier Home Appliance Co.,Ltd.

15. Imperial Eagle Co., Ltd.

16. Premier Alternative Motors Co.,Ltd.

17. Premier Resort Krabi Co.,Ltd.
18. Raya Heritage Co., Ltd.

19. Sea Harrier Co., Ltd.

20. Seri Premier Co., Ltd.

21. Moo Ban Seri Co., Ltd.

22. Premier TDO Co., Ltd.

23. Seri Assets Co., Ltd.

24. Premier Global Capital Co.,Ltd.
25. Premier Capital Co., Ltd.

26. Premier Sarasuk Co.,Ltd

27. Premier Sukhumvit Center Co.,Ltd.
28. Premier Planner Co.,Ltd.

29. Premier Metrobus

30. Premier Pet Products Co., Ltd.

31. Seri Properties Holding Co., Ltd.

(PFO)
(PE)
(PC2000)
(PIL)
(PB)
(PLMS)
(PM)
(PCD)
(PFP)
(PMF)
(PMC)
(PP)
(PMN)
(PHA)
(IME)
(PAM)
(PRK)
(RYH)
(SHR)
(SP)
(MS)
(PTDO)
(SA)
(PGCAP)
(PO)
(PRR)
(PSO)
(PPlanner)
(PMB)
(PPP)
(SPH)
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2.3.1  maeuunuiiuaiitu

1) nITUMI

a o

vsEniuTevreneammeuunu Iiinniznssums

Name/Position

- None-

2.2 Criteria for Appointing the Directors and

Managements
For the year 2008, the board had not appointed the

Nomination Committee. The selecting of the qualified
persons to be appointed as the director will be made by
consultation among the board. The board will select
them according to knowledge, experience, ability, and
present them to the board. For the annual ordinary
general meeting of the shareholders for the year 2008,
there were two directors who would retire by rotation :
Mr.  Vichien Phongsathorn and Mr. Paritud
Bhandhubanyong which was in accordance with the
articles of association of the company. The board had
considered and resolved that it was deemed appropriate
to present to the annual ordinary general meeting of the
shareholders that the two directors would be re-elected as
directors for another one term, because these persons had
knowledge, ability, and experience which is helpful for
the business operation of the company. The ordinary
general meeting of the shareholders for the year 2008,
had unanimously resolved to re-elect the two directors
for another term.

However, the board fixed the guideline to appoint a
nomination committee from time to time to help the

board as assigned.

2.3 Remuneration for the Managements

2.3.1 Monetary Remuneration
(1) Directors

The Company has the policy to pay remuneration

189145291 2551
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v
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v
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is as follows:

only to directors who not involve in the operation

management. In 2008, the remuneration to the directors

1) UTHN WL o5 malulad $1da (WH1vU) 1)  Premier Technology Public Company Limited
Maun ¥o fh!,ﬁyﬂﬂﬁwu(um) anhumta@im) | Swawduwm)
No. Name Meeting Annual Total(Baht)
Allowance(Baht) Gratuity(Baht)
1 UBYAN FROUUR 110,000 100,000 210,000
Mr. Udom Chatiyanont
2 | wegne Smuagana 90,000 100,000 190,000
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul
3 | wedan Tnsmayant 90,000 100,000 190,000
Mr. Katiya Greigarn
4 [ welinssed  Wugussesd 50,000 100,000 150,000
Mr. Paritud Bhandhubanyong
i'Jll'ﬂl"lﬁf‘)TJLW]uﬂiillﬂ"li 740,000
Total Remuneration for the Directors

@

a o 9 a I a < d o
2) UIEN A 115 Ao uneT FaAud 3119 :

(2) AUINI

a A A J A o w
1) U5En WIdes malulad 3109 (UHww)

a o 9 a J a < d o w
2) U3HN M1 115 AeuNINDT FAANET 31nA
UsHN0Y
' 9y a a A o
meouumuguinis lugdRudouuaz Tutiaso

18 muaaiuRud vy 31.7 S

2.3.2 anpunnudun 1Ry

- if -

2) Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd. : subsidiary

- None —
2
1) Premier Technology Public Company Limited

Managements

- None —

2)  Datapro Computer Systems Co., Ltd. : subsidiary

The remuneration of the managements of Datapro
Computer Systems Co., Ltd., in the form of salary and
bonus, totaling 18 persons, is the amount of 31.7 Million
Baht.

2.3.2 Other remuneration

-None -
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2.4 Corporate Governance

(1) Good Corporate Governance Policy

The board pay attention to good governance. They
believe that the procedure of good governance and
management in the frame of good ethics, which has
transparency, can be inspected, and is fair to all relevant
parties, which will promote the company to grow stably
and sustainably, and will enhance confidence to
shareholders, investors, and all relevant parties. For the
year 2007, the board reviewed and fixed the good
governance policy for use as a guideline for writing on

performance, as appeared in the website of the company

www.Premier-Technology.co.th. In addition, the board

fixed several performance guidelines on the rights of the
shareholders, the building of equality among all
shareholders, the promotion of social equality in
education, the development of disadvantaged juveniles,

in addition to previous years, as per the details in the

next heading :

(2) Performance in Accordance with the Principles of

Good Corporate Governance

The company holds importance in compliance with
the good governance policy, as fixed by the board for
fairness to all the relevant parties, as well as to provide
services to its customers with international quality
products and staff. It made the report on compliance
with good governance, which is in accordance with the 5
categories of the principles of good governance, as fixed

by the Stock Exchange of Thailand in the year 2006, as

follows :

Category 1. Rights of Shareholders

The board fixed the good corporate governance policy

to recognize basic shareholder rights, and to not perform
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any actions that violate those rights. The basic rights of
shareholders as security investors, and the company
owners, are comprised of the right to buy, sell, or transfer
any security which they hold, the right to have a share in
the profit of the company, the right to obtain adequate
information on the company, and the right to participate
in shareholder meetings to express opinions, decision
making on important matters such as dividend payment,
electing or removal of members of the board, the fixing
of directors' remuneration, the appointing of the auditor
and auditor's fee, the approval of important transactions
that affect the direction of the operation of the company,
amendments of the memorandum and articles of
association of the company, etc. Normally, the general
meeting of the shareholders is held once a year.

In the shareholders' meeting the company complies
with the criteria as prescribed by law, and operates in
any matters to promote and facilitate the exercise of the
rights of the shareholders in every meeting. For the year
2008, the company held the ordinary general meeting of
shareholders on April 24, 2008, at Premier Corporate
Park, One Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road. The
company sent the notice of he meeting 15 days in
advance to the Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.,
which is the company registrar, to send to shareholders,
including the criteria and procedure governing the
shareholders' meeting, and information regarding the
agenda of the shareholders' meeting. Each agenda
contained the opinion of the board sufficiently and
clearly, so that the shareholders could make their
decision and vote. The company put all the information
on the website of the company 7 days before the date of
the meeting. In the meeting, 6 directors (out of all 8

directors), participated in the meeting. That included the

chairman of the board, managing director, and chairman
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of the audit committee. The chairman of the meeting
gave the shareholders the opportunity to exercise the
right to inquire. There were questions on the guidelines
of business operation which would make continuous
profit. The board and the managing director presented
the guidelines to be adjusted to have more proportion on
service business, which provides more profit, and took
the suggestion and opinion to consider for business
operation. The minutes of the meeting was sent to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days, and later
publicized in the website of the company. In addition,
the board fixed the guideline to publicize the notice of
the meeting and supporting documents, through the
website of the company, at the same time as that on
which the company sent such documents to the
shareholders for the next meeting.

For the shareholders to send their questions in
advance before the meeting date, the company will
create an online system on the website of the company
to facilitate the shareholders to send their questions,
suggestions, and opinions before the meeting date, for
the annual ordinary general meeting of shareholders, in
the year 2008, in addition to other usual and general

communications made for the previous meetings.

Category 2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The board has supervised and protected the basic
rights equally for all groups and every shareholder, in
both the procedure on the holding of shareholder
meetings, and in having measures to prevent the
directors, executives, and staff using inside information
to procure undue benefits, and to have the disclosure of
information on their interests, and the relevant persons of

the directors and executives.
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For the shareholders' ordinary general meeting of
2008, the board gave the opportunity to the shareholders,
who could not attend the meeting by themselves, to make
an instrument appointing a proxy to allow independent
directors, or other persons, to attend the meeting on their
behalf, by using forms which allow both for shareholders
to indicate voting by themselves, or which allow the
proxy to consider and vote on their behalf, and which
were sent together with the notice for the meeting, or
which could be downloaded from the website of the
company. The company fixed the names and addresses
of 3 independent directors to be alternatives for
appointing as a proxy by shareholders. For the election
of directors, to facilitate the shareholders to elect, it was
proceeded to have the shareholders elect the directors for
the number, as specified in the articles of association of
the company, at the same time. If any shareholder had an
objection, then the director election would be made,
person by person, by ballot, which had been prepared.
Other significant agenda to which any shareholder
objected would also use the ballot. For the ordinary
general meeting of the shareholders of 2009, the board
has the policy that each shareholder should present any
matter to be added as agenda, and to present the name of
the person for director election. The period for
acceptance of any matter was from November 1, 2008, to
January 15, 2009. The company publicized the criteria
and qualification of the directors, the form for presenting
any matter, the form for presenting the name of the
person, and the letter of consent from the person whose
name was presented, in the website of the company, and
also informed the Stock Exchange of Thailand on
October 31, 2008.

The keeping and preventing of the use of inside

information, and the disclosure by the directors and
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executives on the information concerning their interests,
and of relevant persons, is comprised of :

1) The company has the policy, on the security of
information systems, to maintain the criteria on
important fundamental systems in order to build control
systems which have the quality for use with, work,
computer, and information communication systems.

2) The company makes secrecy agreements with its
staff, employees, suppliers, service providers, and the

company visitors to prevent the disclosure of secret data

or information of the company or its subsidiaries.

3) The board and executive of the company jointly
fixed written procedures concerning the use of inside
information of the company to ensure transparency,
equitable treatment, and fairness to the shareholders, and
to prevent procurement of interest by the use of inside
information which has not been disclosed to the public,
including to avoid the criticism on the suitability of the
sale and purchase of the company's securities. This
means that the directors, executives, and staff of the
company must keep the company's secrets, and/or inside
information, and to not disclose or procure benefits for
themselves or for other persons, whether directly or
indirectly, and must not sell, purchase, transfer, or
receive the transfer of the securities of the company by
using the secret and/or inside information of the
company, unless such information has been disclosed to
the public, and must not use the secret and/or inside
information of the company which may cause damage to
the company, whether directly or indirectly, and must not
sell, purchase, transfer, or receive the transfer of the
securities of the company during the period of 1 month
and within 2 working days after the disclosure of such

information. This requirement includes the spouse, and
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any child which has not yet become sui juris, of the
directors, executives, and staff of the company. Any
person who violates such requirement will be punished
by discipline and/or law, as the case may be.

4) The company provides information to the directors
and executives on the duty of executives to report their
holdings of shares in the company, the penalty under the
Securities and Securities Exchange Act B.E. 2535, the
requirement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and in
the event that the directors or executives sell or purchase
securities of the company, that they must report their
holding of shares of the company, and of their spouse,
and any children who have not become sui juris,
according to Section 59 of the Securities and Securities
Exchange Act B.E. 2535, within 3 working days to the

SEC, so that it can publicize such information.

Category 3 Role of Stakeholders

The company pays attention to the rights of every

of stakeholder, whether they are inside

group
stakeholders, such as the executives and staff of the
company, or outside stakeholders, such as creditors or
customers, etc. The company is aware that the support
and presenting of opinion from every group of
stakeholders is helpful for the operation and business
development of the company. The company has
performed in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations so that the rights of the stakeholders will be
well protected. The company has reported on the
operations of the company to the stakeholders both
through its annual report and the website of the company.
The stakeholders can contact the board by normal
communication.

The company fixed the business ethic for staff to

work with continuous loyalty and honesty, responsibility,
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and

devotion,

determination,  discipline, unity,
development, by taking into account the rights of every
group of stakeholders, which is comprised of
shareholders, customers, creditors, competitors and the
staff of the company, as per the details in the website of

the company www.Premier-Technology.co.th

The company has developed the mechanism that the
stakeholders can be involved in improving the company
performance, which comprises of :

1) To regularly provide information on current
services and products, including to provide
training, to the customers.

2) To build a good relationship between the staff of
the company and the stakeholders through the
activities of the staff club such as playing sport,
and having social activities together, etc.

3) To create partnership programs in various forms
between the company and the stakeholders to
improve business together.

The company pays attention to environmental
responsibility of the community and society by fixing a
policy on the environment and society, as per the details
in the website of the company www.Premier-
Technology.co.th. For the year 2008, the company has
the activity for conservation of natural resources and the

environment by mangrove forest afforestation at Khlong

Khon, Samutsongkram province.

Category 4 Disclosure and Transparency

The board pays attention to the disclosure of
information which is correct, accurate, timely, and
transparent, of its business operations, and reports both
financial and non-financial information according to the
criteria set by the SEC and the Stock Exchange of
includes the information on the

Thailand, and
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performance of the duties of the board, which comprises
of the number of meetings, policies and remuneration of
the directors. In addition, the company also discloses
policies and results on its performance with the
environment and and its and

society, policies

performance on good governance. The company
publicizes the information of the company through
channels, including the media of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and the website of the company, both in Thai
and English languages, which the company adjusts to be

current information

The board is responsible for the financial statements
of the company and its subsidiaries, and the financial
information in its annual report. Such financial report is
made in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and standards. The accounting policy chosen
is suitable. The auditing committee will review the
quality of the financial statements and the internal audit
system, including the adequate disclosure of important
information in the notes of the financial statement, and
then report to the board.

For investor relations, the company has not set up any
specific division, but has assigned the Managing
Director to communicate with institutional investors,
and the relevant

shareholders, security analysts,

government authorities, including to give the
opportunity to the general public to present opinion or
make queries through the investor relation section in the

website of the company.

Category 5 Responsibilities of the Board

1. Board Structure

The board is comprised of the persons having

knowledge, ability, and experience which are useful to
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the company, and of those who devote time to
performing their duties in the best interests of the
shareholders. They are persons who fix policies and
plans, supervise, and follow up the performance of
executives to be in accordance with the plans. At
December 31, 2008, the board comprises of 4 executive
directors and 4 Independent directors. The number of
independent directors is 50 per cent or which exceeds 1/3
of the total board of directors, which is in accordance
with the criteria set by the SEC, in order to make a
balance in consideration of any matters, which is suitable
with the duties of the board. Under the articles of
association, the board must comprise of directors of not

less than 5 persons, whose term is as per the details in

page 25.

For the committee of the company, the audit
committee is comprised of 3 independent committee
whose term is 3 years, with main duties to build
credibility, correctness, reliability, and to present the
financial information of the company on time, and to

have qualifications as set by the SEC.

The board fixed the guideline to appoint a nominatior

committee from time to time to help the board as assigned.

The performance of duties of the directors and
executives of the company are clearly separated. The
chairman of the board, who is a director, has the
additional power and duty aside from other director, as to
calling for a meeting of the board, to be the chairman in
the board meeting, to make a vote as the casting vote in
the event that the votes are equal, and to act as the
chairman in the shareholder meeting. The managing
director has the power and duty to manage and carry out

the works. The Chairman of the board and the managing
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director are different persons. Therefore, the board can
check and balance the performance of the executive

efficiently.

For the performing of the duty as a director of
another company, the company has disclosed the
information on directorship positions for each director in
the form presenting annual information (Form 56-1), and
in the annual report so that the shareholders know
annually. The company does not limit the number of
companies for which a director can be the director in
those companies, which depends on the discretion and
potential of each director, which is different from each
other. For the managing director and the executives, the
company has a clear set policy and procedure for the

holding of directorship in other company.

The Board of Director appoint a corporate secretary
on 7 August 2008 for making and coordinating to make
the notices and minutes of the board meetings,
committee meetings, shareholder meetings, and annual
reports, and to keep document on the director register,
including to keep it within a computer system which is
easy to access and which cannot be amended, and

coordinate with the legal division and other divisions to

support the works of the boards on laws and regulations.

2. Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Board

The board performs the duty to consider and approve
the operation of the company which is comprised of
policies, visions, missions, strategies, risks, plans, and
budgets, so that the management can proceed according

to the policies efficiently and effectively.

Good Corporate Governance Policy For the year
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2007, the board reviewed the good corporate governance
policy and made it in writing as per the details in

www.Premier-Technology.co.th in order to have the

efficient, transparent, policy which can be checked, and
build confidence for all relevant parties, and to fix the
procedure to review such policy regularly in order that it
will be in accordance with the conditions of the

company.

Business Ethics The board arranged to have the

written business ethics as per the details in

www.Premier-Technology.co.th, so that the execution
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and staff will hold them as principles for business
operation which is correct and fair to all relevant
persons, including the staff, and which has been
informed to every person to know in order for them to

perform accordingly.

Contflict of Interest The board has set the policy on
conflict of interest, so that any decision to proceed with
business activities must be for the best interest of the
company only, and which should avoid any action which
would cause a conflict of interest, by fixing that any
person related or connected to the considered transaction
must inform the company of his relationship or
connection with that transaction and must not
participate, and who has no power to approve anything
in that transaction. The audit committee will present to
the board about any connected transaction, and any
transaction which has a conflict of interest. The
suitability of such stipulation is considered carefully, and
the company must comply with the criteria of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, including to disclose it in the
form to present as annual information (Form 56-1), and

in the annual report. The details of the stockholding of

the directors and executives are on page 45-46.
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Internal Audit The board pays attention to the
supervision and internal audit, both at the executive level
and operation level, which is efficient. The internal audit
is the important mechanism to build management
confidence, to help reduce business risks, to help the
business operate efficiently by proper allocation of
resources to achieve its goals, to help prevent dishonesty
or the loss of property, to help ensure that financial
reports are correct and reliable, and to help that staff
perform in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations, and to help to protect the investment money
of the shareholders. Therefore, the company fixed the
duty, and the power of the executives and operating staff,
clearly in writing. There is the supervision of using of
assets of the company for benefit and division of duties
between the operating staff and the person who

supervises and assesses their performance, so that there

are the proper check and balances between them.

The company makes and reviews controlling systems;
operations, financial reporting, compliance with rules,
regulations, policies, and working supervision, including
risk management, and pays attention to early warning
and unusual transactions, of which the internal auditor
from outside the organization has the duty to inspect to
ensure that the company has sufficient and proper
internal auditing, and also that the internal auditor has
independence and can perform fully the duty of checks
and balances. The internal auditor will report the result
to the audit committee. The company will follow up and
assess it regularly. The company will assess the
sufficiency of the internal audit at least once a year to

ensure that the system will continue efficiently.

Risk Management The board pays attention to risk
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management for the organization as a whole, and
assesses and manages the risk of the organization, in
order to manage risk to be at an acceptable level. The
company has no division responsible directly for this
matter. However, the company makes the control self
assessment both at executive level and operation level, to
obstacles, and

jointly assess the risks, problems,

uncertainties, which may affect the operation in
achieving the goals of the company, or the incidents
which may make the company lose business
opportunities, the risks which may arise from the causes
from inside and outside the organization. It is fixed that
if any risk is an obstacle to the business operation, and
that it can prevent achieving the company's goals, then
the company must have the measures to manage that risk,
and to promote, and stimulate every person to build a
working culture of risk awareness, have understanding of
the causes the risk, such as to improve working
procedure, and to use the resources properly to prevent
and reduce any loss which may occur. In contrast, such
systematical operation will make the company receive
new business opportunities which will build additional
value for the organization.

In 2008, the company assessed the risks and the
sufficiency of the internal audit system in order to
seek the guidelines to improve and amend the working
operations to have more efficient performance, of which
the scope includes the management, marketing, sales and
resources. The company assigns and follows up that the
executive who is responsible for each work proceeds
with the guidelines on working improvement, including
to have the relevant persons used for the proceedings so
that the performance will be more efficient. The board

considers and reviews the sufficiency of the risk

management system and the effectiveness of the risk
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management many times, including to pay attention to
early warnings.

Report of the Board of Directors The audit
committee has a duty to review financial report, which
accounting staff and auditor will have a meeting
altogether, and then present the financial report to the
Board of Director of the Company every quarter. The
Board the Director of the Company will be responsible
for total financial statements of the Company and
subsidiaries, including the financial information (Report
on Responsibility of the Board of Director as to Financial
Report) which is specified in prepared in accordance
with the accounting standard, and audited by the certified
public accountant of the Company. The disclosure of the
important information, both financial and non-financial
information, is made based on the complete and
consistent of facts.

3. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors fixes the meeting normally
every 3 months. The meetings schedule are set in
advance annually, and additional special meeting may be
held as necessary. The agenda is set clearly. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Managing
Director jointly set the agenda, consider the matters to be
transacted in the meeting, and give opportunity to each
director to propose any matter to be transacted as the
agenda of the meeting. The documents will be sent in
advance before the meeting date so that the Board of
Director will have sufficient time to study the
information before the meeting unless in case of
emergency, which the director can ask information from
Managing Director, or secretary of the Board of
Directors, in addition to the documents sent. The

Company makes performance report and presented it to

the Board of Director every month, so that the Board of
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Director can supervise the operation of the managing
division continuously and on time.

In consideration of the matters, Chairman of the
Board of Director who acts as the Chairman of the
meeting will grant the opportunity to the directors to
express their opinion freely, and allocate sufficient time
for the director to discuss the important issue. The
Managing Director, as the top executive of the company,
participates in the meetings every time to explain
information which is year plan, performance, new
project, etc., including to know the policy directly and
use it efficiently. The resolution of the meeting will be
in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. The decision of the meeting will be made by
majority rote. That is a director will have only one vote
for the voting. Any director who has interest in any
matter will have no right to vote in that matter. In case
of equal vote, the Chairman of the meeting can have
another vote as the casting vote.

In each meeting of the Board of Director of the
Company, the secretary of the Board of Director attends
the meeting and will record the minutes of the meeting.
The material part is comprised of date, time of beginning
- finishing the meeting, names of the directors present
and absent, summary of the matter proposed to the Board
of Directors, summary of the issue which has discussion,
note of the Board of Director, and resolution of the Board
of Directors, etc. Then, it will be proposed to the
meeting to be certified in the next meeting, and send to
the Chairman of the Board of Director to consider and
sign to certify its correctness. In addition, the
information and documents on the meetings is kept both

the original and by computer system for convenience in

searching and referring, which it cannot be amended.
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Normally the Board of Directors will attend the meeting
every time and every person unless in case of necessary
cause which will be informed in advance before the meeting
(Additional details of the meeting in the year 2008 is in page
23-24,27). Moreover, it is the policy of the Board that the
non-executive directors have the opportunity to have
meeting, as necessary, among themselves, without
management team, to debate the issues they are interested.
The meeting outcome will be notified by them to the
managing director.

4. Remuneration

The company has the policy to pay remuneration to the
directors and executive which is incentive in the appropriate
levels, by taking into account the performance of the
Company, and in accordance with the industry level in
which the Company operates, including suitability with the
position and responsibility of each director and executive, in
the forms of director's remuneration, meeting remuneration,
salary and bonus.

Director's Remuneration In the year 2008, the director
who is not stakeholder considered the payment of director
remuneration, and the 2008 Annual Ordinary General
Meeting of the Shareholding had a resolution to approve the
director's remuneration on April 24, 2008, by fixing the
payment of directors' remuneration for the director who not
involve in the operation management., which is currently
comprised of 4 Independent Directors, and for the amount of
not exceed Baht 1,000,000 totally per annum.

Remuneration of Managing Director and Executive
The Board will fix the Managing Director's remuneration by
consider the result of appraisal made by the board but will
not include the Managing Director. The criteria for
appraisal is set in advance together with the Managing

Director, and is objective, with care to pay the remuneration

of the executive of the Company and subsidiary at the
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appropriate level and in competitive rate in the same
industry, in order to keep the executive, who has quality, to
work with the Company. The Chairman of the Board will
inform the result of the consideration to the Managing
Director.

The Board fixes the guideline to set up the Remuneration

Committee from time to time to help the board as assigned.

5. Board Self Assessment

The Board assessed their performance as the whole to
assist in reviews of their performance, problem, and
obstruction in the previous year, and to help increase the
efficiency of their works. The Board jointly fixed the
criteria of assessment and the assessment as a whole
regularly since the year 2007.
6. Board and Management Training

The Board has policy to encourage and facilitate training
for all internal parties related the corporate governance
including member of the audit committee and executive to
continuously their such as

improve performances,

consultancy, study guideline of making foresight. The
members of the Board have participated the training in
various courses from the Association to Promote Institute of
Thai Director (IOD) at all times. In the event that there is a
change of director, or new directors, the management will
provide documents and information useful to perform their
duties, including to arrange to have introduction to the
nature of business and the operation of the Company to the
new directors. In addition, the Company promotes to
provide knowledge to personnel relating to works of
Company secretary and internal auditing, which relates to
supervision of the Company. The Company develops
personnel to succeed the executive's, and fixes the

successors in case the executives in any levels in cannot

perform their duties.
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2.5 Protection Against the Use of Inside Information
(Details are as described on Page 44-45 )

2.6 Internal Control

The Company realizes the importance of an internal
control system and therefore monitors the operations of
the Company and its Subsidiaries. The Board of Director
assigned to the Audit Committee to review the evaluation
of a system of internal control to ensure that the
Company has sufficient and appropriate internal control.
To protect the Company and its subsidiary’s properties
arising from the wrongfully or without sufficiency power
executive. Accuracy of financial statement and
compliance audit of the Company that pursuant to the
Securities and Exchange regulation. The Company’s
internal control systems are summarized in the following.

2.6.1 Organization and Environment

The Company set goal for business operation and
working clearly according to the types of products,
which can be measured, and compare the target with the
actual performance at every stage. The Company
provides incentive or remuneration to the staff by
considering the possibility of the goal. The Company
arrange the organization chart to divide the functions into
function lines, and fix about ethics, policy on business
supervision, conflict of interest, including to make the

powers to operate in writing, and adjust it to be suitable

with the current business condition.

2.6.2 Risk Management

The Company assesses both internal and external risk
factors which may affect its business operations. The

purpose is to analyze and rate the risk levels according to
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the effects and the possibility of the risk happening in
each business procedure by analyze and leveling the risk
according with the impact and possibility to occur in
each procedure of business, in order to fix the risk
management plan, including to have internal assessment
by itself together with the internal control division every
year.  The Company has also set a risk management
plan in cooperation with the internal control unit of the
Premier Group of Companies and regularly monitors the

situations or risk factors.

2.6.3 The Control of Management’s Operations

The Company has prepared a manual on operational

authorities which clearly specifies the scope of

authorities and the amount each management level is
authorized to approve. The Company has also organized
the work structure under which the duties to approve
record transactions and

transactions, accounting

managing assets are separated. It also monitors the
Company’s performance and practices to ensure strict

compliance with current laws and regulations.

2.6.4 Information and Communication Systems

Important information on various matters is compiled
for management decisions. The Company follows
generally accepted accounting principles and retains all
necessary accounting documents by the Revenue

Department’s laws and regulations.

The Company provides the communication systems
which are the communication of the responsibilities and
duties to employees since they started their work, the
orientation, training and probation. The Company

provides various channels for the employees’ opinion,
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the internal communication and the outsiders. When the
Company is reported or complained of the products,
services or the other, the Company finds out of the cause
and resolves it immediately

2.6.5 Monitoring Systems

The Company monitors and evaluates corporate

operating  performance by  comparison  with
predetermined targets. A Rolling Plan is made every
quarter, and each unit is required to analyze the reasons
for any differences. The aim is to identify directions for
improving the operations.

The Company has comprehensive internal control
structure of the 5 components of Internal Control

Standard which is sufficient and effective control.

2.7 Dividend Payment Policy
The Company has dividend payment policy is based

on its performance and cash flow. The Company’s Board
of Directors will propose dividend payment to
shareholders’ meeting for consideration on a yearly
basis.

For its subsidiary, Datapro Computer Systems, has a
policy to pay dividend to the Company not less than

50% of after-tax profit, legal reserve, liabilities and

reserve for investment in subsidiary extension.
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1. Connected Transactions with Persons Who May

Have Had Conflict of Interest

During the year, the Company and its subsidiary had
business transactions with related companies (related by
having the same shareholders and/or directors) such as
Premier Motors Co., Ltd., Premier Resort Krabi Co.,
Ltd., IQA Laboratory Co., Ltd., Premier Fission Capital
Co., Ltd., Seri Premier Co., Ltd., Premier Marketing Co.,
Ltd., Premier Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and Premier
Metrobus Co., Ltd. Such business transactions were in
line with the terms and conditions mutually agreed upon,
or the agreements between the Company and those
companies, and were business as usual. These included
Sales and service income and Selling and administration
expenses which are also provided in the Notes of the

Financial Statements for the year 2008 in Remark 6.

2. Connected Transactions Between the Company

and Its Subsidiary.

-None-
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(1) Operating Result

In the year 2008, the company and its subsidiaries had
net profit from operation in the amount of 30.01 Million
Baht, the gross profit 1,591.95 Million Baht, which come
from sales and service income of computer and software
business, other income of 19.75 Million Baht, the capital
of selling and services in the amount of 1,177.83 Million
Baht, the company’s selling and administrative expenses
in the amount of 382.95 Million Baht, financial

expenses of 2.64 Million Baht and corporate income tax

in the amount of 18.27 Million Baht.

The change of the Company’s financial status and
performance in the year 2008 by comparison with the
year 2007, net profit increased by 5.31 Million Baht,
which come from sales and service increased by 192.77
Million Baht, other income decreased by 0.94 Million
Baht. The selling and services’ capital and the selling
and administrative expenses increased by 187.24 Million
Baht, financial expenses decreased by 3.67 Million Baht
and corporate income tax increased by 2.56 Million

Baht.
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(2) Financial Status

The total assets of the company and its subsidiaries in
the amount of 798.56 Million Baht increased by 66.46
Million Baht, resulted from the cash and cash equivalents
increased by 60.69 Million Baht, current investment
decreased by 7.41 Million Baht, trade receivable
decreased by 28.18 Million Baht, remaining of the
inventory increased by 50.24 Million Baht, other current
assets decreased by 1.69 Million Bath, restricted fixed
deposit with bank increased by 14.45 Million Baht,
investment in associated company increased by 1.95
Million Baht, other long-term investment increased by
10.00 Million Baht, computer software presented as part
of net equipments decreased by 12.78 Million Baht, other
non-current assets decreased by 20.82 Million Baht.

The total liabilities of the company and its
subsidiaries in the amount of 556.30 Million Baht
increased by 20.78 Million Baht, resulted from Short-
term loan from financial institution increased by 10.00
Million Baht, account payable increased by 22.96
Million Baht, account payable of related parties
decreased by 0.46 Million Baht, factoring payable
account decreased by 21.39 Million Baht, accrued
expenses decreased by 32.18 Million Baht, deferred
service income increased by 4.12 Million Baht, other
current liabilities increased by 6.71 Million Baht, long-
term loans and current portion of long-term loans of
finance lease payable increased by 1.81 Million Baht,
current portion of long term liabilities of finance lease
payable increased by 3.42 Million Baht, current portion
of long term

liabilities under rehabilitation plan

decreased by 2.28 Million Baht.

Shareholder’s equity of the company and its

subsidiaries in the amount of 242.26 Million Baht

189145291 2551

63

Annual Report 2008




u7en wrmes malufa@ T1fn CUKIBLD eREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY

A

$mau 3001 dwum drwvesddeiudiutivevsa
VsEngesanasiuiu 3533 dwmumuaziilsoinms
eiiuauldunusEninedostudman 51 a1

UM

(3) iadunazdnsnariannerviinanamsautiuay

wieguzmtuluean

- Taifi -

increased by 45.68 Million Baht, net profit of the
company and its subsidiaries in the amount of 30.01
Million Baht, minority interests decreased by 35.33
Million Baht and the profit from selling investment in the

amount of 51 Million Baht.

(3) Major Factors and Influences which may Affect

Future Operations or Financial Status

-None-
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the integrity
and objectivity of the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary reasonable assurance that the
financial statements present fairly financial position,
results of operation, cash flow, the books and records of
the Company accurately reflect all transactions, the
Company’s assets are properly safeguarded, including
the control systems designed to protect against fraud and
irregularity transaction. The financial statements have
been prepared with the chosen accounting policy deemed
appropriate and applied on consistency basis in
accordance  with  generally

accepted  accounting

principles, and significant information has been
adequately disclosed in note to financial statements, in
which the independent auditor express an opinion in the
auditor’s report.

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee
with Independent Directors in providing -efficiently

financial statements and internal control system.

(W85 NIATT)
(Mr. Vichien Phongsathorn)
U5e51UNTTUMS

Chairman of the Board
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Report of Audit Committee
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The Audit Committee of the Company composed of
3 Independent Directors namely, with Mr. Udom
Chatiyanont as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Mr. Suchai Vatanatrinakul and Mr. Katiya Greigarn as
members of the Audit Committee.

During 2008, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings,
for the purpose of reviewing and advising the Company’s
business in line with its scope of responsibilities

designated by the Board of Directors as follows:

1. Reviewed the Company and subsidiaries’ financial
reports —both quarterly and annual with management and

auditors to ensure accuracy and transparency.

2. Reviewed the Company’s internal controls and
suggested to improve internal control’s quality including
risk management analysis format, to ensure their
effectiveness.

3. Reviewed the Company’s internal control and internal

audit procedures to ensure sufficiency and suitability.
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4. Proposed the appointment of the Company’s auditor
and the auditing fee for the year 2008 to the Board of
Directors for approval of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2008.

5. Considered reasonably of connected transactions,
which could have conflicts of interest with the Company
in the year 2008 before propose to the Board of
Directors to approval from the Shareholders’ meeting.

6. The Audit Committee regularly submitted all Minutes

of the meeting to the Board of Directors.

In addition to, the Audit Committees proposed to the
Board of Directors to appoint Ernst & Young Office
Limited be the Company auditors of the year 2009 for
the Annual General of

approved in Meeting

Shareholders.

TuuuaueNITUMIATINETOU

On behalf of the Audit Committee

(1ERAN WIABIUUN)
(Mr. Udom Chatiyanont)

UseHUNTTUMIATINADY

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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I have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of Premier Technology Public Company
Limited and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2008 and
2007 and the related consolidated statements of income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the separate financial statements of
Premier Technology Public Company Limited for the
same periods. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management as to their
correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
I plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. |

believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Premier Technology Public Company
Limited and its subsidiary and of Premier Technology
Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2008 and

2007, and the results of their operations, and cash flows
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for the years then ended, in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Siraporn Ouaanunkun

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3844

Ernst & Young Office Limited

Bangkok: 19 February 2009
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

Balance sheets

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

=z
(]
=
(0]

Current investment - fixed deposits with banks

Trade accounts receivable
Related parties

Unrelated parties

Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable - net
Inventories - net

Other current assets

Withholding income tax deducted at source

Accrued service income
Prepaid service cost
Others
Total current assets
Non-current assets

Restricted fixed deposits with banks

23.3

Account receivable from transfer of rights

of claim - related party - net
Investment in subsidiary - net
Investment in associate
Other long-term investment
Equipment - net
Other non-currrent assets
Prepaid rental expenses
Deposit on share - related party
Others
Total non-current assets

Total assets

10
11
12

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2008 2007 2008 2007
75,147,678 14,453,859 50,316,356 1,476,069
8,643 7,414,182 8,643 7,414,182
410,275 3,076,106 - -
373,118,263 393,446,678 - -
(13,097,061) (7,916,172) - -
360,431,477 388,606,612 - -
108,418,600 58,177,350 - -
5,359,736 10,521,159 639,761 643,541
6,054,442 5,506,031 - -
39,266,831 37,519,984 - -
10,635,970 9,455,171 619,329 356,425
605,323,377 531,654,348 51,584,089 9,890,217
49,934,821 35,483,590 - -
- - 152,726,861 117,626,861
1,950,000 - 1,950,000 -
10,000,000 - 10,000,000 -
111,316,942 124,101,145 29,890 2,012
16,641,954 19,123,346 - -
- 18,100,000 - 18,100,000
3,391,856 3,634,563 - -
193,235,573 200,442,644 164,706,751 135,728,873
798,558,950 732,096,992 216,290,840 145,619,090
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Balance sheets (continued)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Short-term loan from financial institution 13 10,000,000 - - -
Trade accounts payable 265,032,455 242,070,730 - -
Amounts due to related parties 6 56,109 513,749 - -
Accounts payable - factoring company 7 - 21,393,453 - -
Current portion of long-term loans 14 4,821,093 4,863,263 - -
Current portion of long-term liabilities 15 40,276,984 38,974,427 - -
Current portion of long-term liabilities

Under rehabilitation plan 16 2,153,699 2,274,521 2,153,699 2,274,521
Other current liabilities

Accrued expenses 121,458,718 106,279,688 178,192 1,332,405

Deferred service income 53,846,113 62,520,489 - -

Corporate income tax payable 715,725 - - -

Others 17,962,982 18,472,516 13,508 1,782
Total current liabilities 516,323,878 497,362,836 2,345,399 3,608,708
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans - net current portion 14 3,537,889 1,686,543 - -
Long-term liabilities - net of current portion 15 34,135,606 32,014,776 - -
Long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan - net

of current portion 16 2,048,822 4,202,521 2,048,822 4,202,521
Other non-current liabilities 252,000 252,000 - -
Total non-current liabilities 39,974,317 38,155,840 2,048,822 4,202,521
Total liabilities 556,298,195 535,518,676 4,394,221 7,811,229

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

Balance sheets (continued)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital

Registered

P
(]
=
(o]

142,440,489 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each

Issued and fully paid up

141,944,471 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each

Company's shares held by subsidiary 17

Gain on sale of investment to related company 6

Retained earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve

Unappropriated (deficit)

18

Equity attributable to Company's shareholders

Minority interest - equity attributable to minority

shareholders of subsidiary

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2008 2007 2008 2007
142,440,489 142,440,489 142,440,489 142,440,489
141,944,471 141,944,471 141,944,471 141,944,471

(230,175) (230,175) - -
51,000,000 - 51,000,000 -
1,950,000 3,150,000 1,950,000 750,000
47,596,459 16,389,427 17,002,148 (4,886,610)
242,260,755 161,253,723 211,896,619 137,807,861
- 35,324,593 - -
242,260,755 196,578,316 211,896,619 137,807,861
798,558,950 732,096,992 216,290,840 145,619,090
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Income statements

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

Revenues
Sales 1,209,571,465 1,088,557,349 - -
Service income 382,378,996 310,620,827 - -
Dividend income 9 - - 26,999,460 -
Other income 19,749,379 20,689,583 296,602 2,842,419
Total revenues 1,611,699,840 1,419,867,759 27,296,062 2,842,419
Expenses
Cost of sales and services 1,177,833,732 1,028,420,215 - -
Selling expenses 148,286,755 121,759,813 - -
Administrative expenses 231,407,995 222,122,407 4,207,304 7,737,261
Other expenses 3,258,520 1,240,595 - -
Total expenses 1,560,787,002 1,373,543,030 4,207,304 7,737,261
Income (loss) before finance cost

and income tax 50,912,838 46,324,729 23,088,758 (4,894,842)
Finance cost (2,638,977) (5,914,525) - -
Income (loss) before corporate income tax 48,273,861 40,410,204 23,088,758 (4,894,842)
Corporate income tax 20 (18,266,829) (15,710,000) - -
Net income (loss) for the year 30,007,032 24,700,204 23,088,758 (4,894,842)
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 30,007,032 18,781,195 23,088,758 (4,894,842)
Minority interest of the subsidiary - 5,919,009
Net income for the year 30,007,032 24,700,204
Basic earnings per share 21
Net income (loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent 0.21 0.13 0.16 (0.03)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

Cash flow statements

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss) before tax

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Alllowance for diminution in value of inventories
Depreciation
Gain on sale of investment in other company
(Gain) loss on sale of equipment
Written-off equipment
Amortisation of prepaid rental expenses
Interest expenses

Income (loss) from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Trade accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Amounts due to related parties
Other current liabilities

Cash from (used in) operating activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2008 2007 2008 2007
48,273,861 40,410,204 23,088,758 (4,894,842)
5,180,889 2,953,331 - -
3,566,630 624,253 - -
67,353,073 64,514,499 1,561 222
- (93,527) - (93,527)
4,030 (2,105,625) - _
- 762,206 - -
2,481,391 2,479,795 - -
2,638,977 5,914,525 - -
129,498,851 115,459,661 23,090,319 (4,988,147)
22,994,246 16,314,310 - -
(53,807,880) 42,410,501 - -
1,685,366 (4,774,269) (259,124) 40,093
242,707 1,460,946 - 521,673
22,961,725 (108,773,011) - -
(457,640) (2,505,149) - (3,018,898)
6,056,601 46,434,415 (1,142,487) (19,173)
129,173,976 106,027,404 21,688,708 (7,464,452)
(2,700,458) (5,808,572) - -
(17,551,104) (30,857,178) - (14,451,422)
108,922,414 69,361,654 21,688,708 (21,915,874)
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Gﬁﬁzﬁuﬁuﬁﬁmwzma (8,032,824) (7,237,720) - -
Rueasuantudouszezen 9,842,000 10,584,830 - -
Gﬁﬁsﬁuwﬁﬁuszawn (36,406,812) (36,508,080) - -
thsxﬁuwﬁyﬁusxaxanmmmuﬂ‘yuvjﬁﬂmi (2,274,521) (3,246,075) (2,274,521) (3,246,075)
NeRuiluwa - (14,194,447) - (14,194,447)
Quaagnildlfludanssaudamidu (48,265,610)  (74,628,208) (2,274,521)  (17,440,522)
Ruaauaznemsfeunhduaainiiy @aag) qns 60,693,819 (65,226,161) 48,840,287 (62,528,035)
Suaauazswmsiieumituan o Tudull 14,453,859 79,680,020 1,476,069 64,004,104
SuaanazsemsiisumiSuan o Tulawid 75,147,678 14,453,859 50,316,356 1,476,069
ei’j’aynns:uaﬁuﬁmﬂﬂmmﬁmﬁu
s19msi ilsGuaa
Funsndnldnneld oy 11n1en1stu 39,830,199 24,522,390 - -
%1i:wﬁyﬂ1ﬂﬂ1ic§ﬂﬁuaqnu"luu?ﬁméﬂa
Tﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂaﬂﬁugﬂﬂﬁyﬁ1ﬂ Ty Toudns 17,000,000 - 17,000,000 -
Gﬁﬁwﬁymﬂmiv‘ﬁaﬁuamu‘luﬁﬁw&iaa
TasrinnaunuQuiadi 18,100,000 - 18,100,000 -
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Cash flow statements (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2008 2007 2008 2007

Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase) decrease in current investment 7,405,539 (7,412,932) 7,405,539 (7,412,932)
Increase in fixed deposits subject to encumbrance (14,451,231) (10,530,366) - -
Cash receipt from remuneration 34,000,000 - 34,000,000 -
Proceeds from sales of equipment 637,866 3,050,878 - -
Acquisition of equipment (15,605,159) (29,310,714) (29,439) (2,234)
Cash return from investment in other company - 2,343,527 - 2,343,527
Acquisition of investment in associate (1,950,000) - (1,950,000) -
Acquisition of other long-term investment (10,000,000) - (10,000,000) -
Deposit on shares paid to related company - (18,100,000) - (18,100,000)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities 37,015 (59,959,607) 29,426,100 (23,171,639)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loans from financial institution 10,000,000 - - -
Decrease in accounts payable - factoring company (21,393,453) (24,026,716) - -
Repayment of long-term loans (8,032,824) (7,237,720) - -
Cash receipt from long-term loan 9,842,000 10,584,830 - -
Repayment of long-term liabilities (36,406,812) (36,508,080) - -
Repayment of long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan (2,274,521) (3,246,075) (2,274,521) (3,246,075)
Dividend paid - (14,194,447 - (14,194,447)
Net cash used in financing activities (48,265,610) (74,628,208) (2,274,521) (17,440,522)
Net increase (decease) in cash and cash equivalents 60,693,819 (65,226,161) 48,840,287 (62,528,035)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 14,453,859 79,680,020 1,476,069 64,004,104
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 75,147,678 14,453,859 50,316,356 1,476,069

Supplementary disclosures of cash flows information:
Non-cash transactions
Assets under finance lease agreements 39,830,199 24,522,390 - -
Settlement of payable from investment in
subsidiary by offsetting with accounts receivable
from transfer of right of claim 17,000,000 - 17,000,000 -
Settlement of payable from investment in subsidiary

by offsetting with deposit on share 18,100,000 - 18,100,000 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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141,944,471 (230,175) - 2,400,000 12,552,679 156,666,975 29,405,584 186,072,559
- - - - 18,781,195 18,781,195 5,919,009 24,700,204
22 - - - - (14,194,447) (14,194,447) - (14,194,447)
18 - - - 750,000 (750,000) - - -
141,944,471 (230,175) - 3,150,000 16,389,427 161,253,723 35,324,593 196,578,316
- - - - 30,007,032 30,007,032 - 30,007,032
6 - - 51,000,000 - - 51,000,000 - 51,000,000
18 - - - 1,200,000 (1,200,000) - - -
- - - (2,400,000) 2,400,000 - (35,324,593) (35,324,593)
141,944,471 (230,175) 51,000,000 1,950,000 47,596,459 242,260,755 - 242,260,755
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Statements of changes in shareholders' equity

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Equity attributable to the parent's shareholders
Total Minority interest-
Issued Gain on sale of Retained earnings equity attributable  equity attributable
and paid-up Company's shares investment to Appropriated - to the parent's o minority shareholders
Note share capital held by subsidiary related company statutory reserve Unappropriated shareholders of subsidiary Total

Balance as at 31 December 2006 141,944,471 (230,175) - 2,400,000 12,552,679 156,666,975 29,405,584 186,072,559
Net income for the year - - - - 18,781,195 18,781,195 5,919,009 24,700,204
Dividend paid 22 - - - - (14,194,447) (14,194,447) - (14,194,447)
Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve 18 - - - 750,000 (750,000) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2007 141,944,471 (230,175) - 3,150,000 16,389,427 161,253,723 35,324,593 196,578,316
Net income for the year - - - - 30,007,032 30,007,032 - 30,007,032
Gain on sale of investment to related company 6 - - 51,000,000 - - 51,000,000 - 51,000,000
Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve 18 - - - 1,200,000 (1,200,000) - - -
Minority interest - equity attributable to

minority shareholders of subsidiary - - - (2,400,000) 2,400,000 - (35,324,593) (35,324,593)
Balance as at 31 December 2008 141,944,471 (230,175) 51,000,000 1,950,000 47,596,459 242,260,755 - 242,260,755
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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141,944,471 - - 14,952,679 156,897,150
- - - (4,894,842) (4,894,842)
22 - - - (14,194,447) (14,194,447)
18 - - 750,000 (750,000) -
141,944,471 - 750,000 (4,886,610) 137,807,861

- - - 23,088,758 23,088,758

6 - 51,000,000 - - 51,000,000

18 - - 1,200,000 (1,200,000) -
141,944,471 51,000,000 1,950,000 17,002,148 211,896,619
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Premier Technology Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

Statements of changes in shareholders' equity (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Issued Gain on sale Retained earnings (defict)
and paid-up of investmentto  Appropriated -
Note share capital related company statutory reserve Unappropriated Total

Balance as at 31 December 2006 141,944,471 - - 14,952,679 156,897,150
Net loss for the year - - - (4,894,842) (4,894,842)
Dividend paid 22 - - - (14,194,447) (14,194,447)
Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve 18 - - 750,000 (750,000) -
Balance as at 31 December 2007 141,944,471 - 750,000 (4,886,610) 137,807,861
Net income for the year - - - 23,088,758 23,088,758
Gain on sale of investment to related company 6 - 51,000,000 - - 51,000,000
Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve 18 - - 1,200,000 (1,200,000) -
Balance as at 31 December 2008 141,944,471 51,000,000 1,950,000 17,002,148 211,896,619
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY

PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
AND 2007

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Corporate Information

Premier Technology Public Company Limited (“the
Company”) is a public company incorporate and
domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally
engaged in a holding company, with a registered office
located at One Premier Corporate Park, Soi Premier 2,

Srinakarin Road, Nongbon, Prawet, Bangkok.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting standards enunciated
under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547
and their presentation has been made in

compliance with the stipulations of the Notification

of the Department of Business Development dated

14 September 2001, issued under the Accounting

Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the

official statutory financial statements of the
Company. The financial statements in English
language have been translated from such financial

statements in Thai language.

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except where otherwise

disclosed in the accounting policies.

19915291 2551
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L (% o a . . N
2.2 AN IUMTIANINUMTEU 2.2 Basis of consolidation

4
o =

E4
) Wwmssusrudlasanivulagsiuau a) The consolidated financial statements

A5 uYeIUsSYN waied malulad include the financial statements of the

Il Ea
$1fa (U¥IYY) LazuITMdes (Yaae 1il Company (“the Company”) and the

Ed
3en1 “UTHNL0Y”) RERRILY following subsidiary (“the subsidiary™):

F3 Y 4
T0UATVD $ovazvoaneld
a o o a' ' v,
auning Asweglunelds
fisweglu dmsulauga
Funsndi il 31 Sunaw
Ll "llluﬁ 31 FuUNAY Revenues as a
Assets as a percentage
Yadan dadenas percentage to the to the consolidated
Tutlszamst UBINT 5aﬁ’u consolidated total revenues for the
%EJU?}T“VI ANHUSVDITIND Country of Percentage of total assets year ended
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation shareholding as at 31 December 31 December
2551 2550 2551 2550 2551 2550
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
E3 E3 F3 Y Y E3
Jo8Rz Jo8RE JoeRT  I0YAT  J0UAY Jo8RE
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Ao v a da d o o ° '
5N a1 11s neuniunes FaAud $10a e lsunsuuas e 100 80 92 9% 100 100
Datapro Computer Systems Company Limited qﬂﬂi aineuiiunoy Thailand
Distributor of computer
software and hardware
V) UTENAINUMINUYIUTEngoou1s Iy b)  Subsidiary is fully consolidated as from the
o o A M T Ay y L. .
AMIIANIIUNITISUIInAuaTun ldun date of acquisition, being the date on
(5uﬁu?ﬁw4 ﬁémwiummmqw?ﬁw which the Company obtains control, and
v Y
g08) 9 U IUNVTENIdU qgANITAIUAY continue to be consolidated until the date
k4
UTHNIDYUY when such control ceases.
Fd
a a o 1 5 o = . . g
f) Q‘]JmiNuﬂlﬁN‘UiB‘I/IEJ?JEJVlﬂi]ﬂ‘l/nﬁlluiﬂﬂﬁ c) The financial statements of the subsidiary
o A k) o aa . . .
i?J‘U3$EJ$!JmTJﬂuJ“ULLaZGlGBuIEJTﬂEJﬂﬁ‘UEIJUGWI is prepared for the same reporting period
fhﬁngvﬁmﬁ #INUNLVOIUTHNA as the parent company, using consistent
] ' a o ao 1 .. . ..
1) ¥9AANANTEHINUTENIUASUTHNYDEY significant accounting policies.
v oo A o o v o . .
518ﬂ15ﬂTizﬁ’JNﬂuﬁﬁﬁﬁzfﬂﬂigllﬂgﬂﬁﬂ d) Material balances and transactions

4

a k% . . qe
2ONNIUMINUTINULAD between the Company and its subsidiary

have been eliminated from  the

consolidated financial statements.
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e) Minority interests represent the portion of
net income or loss and net assets of the
subsidiary that are not held by the
Company and are presented separately in
the consolidated income statement and
within equity in the consolidated balance
sheet.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present
investments in subsidiary presented under the cost

method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of

the public.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

3.1 Accounting standards which are effective for

the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has

issued Notifications No. 9/2550, 38/2550 and 62/2550

regarding Accounting Standards. The notifications

mandate the use of the following new Accounting

Standards.

TAS 25 (revised 2007)
TAS 29 (revised 2007)
TAS 31 (revised 2007)
TAS 33 (revised 2007)
TAS 35 (revised 2007)

TAS 39 (revised 2007)

TAS 41 (revised 2007)
TAS 43 (revised 2007)
TAS 49 (revised 2007)
TAS 51

Cash Flow Statements
Leases

Inventories

Borrowing Costs
Presentation of Financial
Statements
Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
Interim Financial Reporting
Business Combinations

Construction Contracts

Intangible Assets

These accounting standards become effective for the
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financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after
1 January 2008. The management has assessed the effect
of these standards and believes that TAS 49 is not
relevant to the business of the Company, while the others
do not have any significant impact on the financial
statements for the current year.
3.2 Thai Accounting Standards which are not
effective for the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions has also
issued Notification No. 86/2551 mandating the use of the
following new accounting standards:

TAS 36 (revised 2007)  Impairment of Assets
TAS 54 (revised 2007)

Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and  Discontinued
Operations

These accounting standards will become effective for the

financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after

1 January 2009. The management has assessed the effect

of these standards and believes that they will not have

any significant impact on the financial statements for the

year in which they are initially applied.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to
the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value
added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts
and allowances.

Rendering of service

Service revenue is recognized when services have been
rendered taking into account the stage of completion. The
Company assessed the stage of completion in accordance

with the services rendered in proportion to the total
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services to be rendered.

4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash
at bank, and all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and not subject

to withdrawal restrictions.

4.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realizable

value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for

the estimated collection losses that may occur from the
collection of receivables. The allowance is based on
collection experience and analysis of debtor aging.

4.4 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (under the

first-in, first-out method and the specific identification

method) and net realizable value.

4.5 Investments

a) Investments in debt securities, expected to be held to
maturity, are recorded at amortised cost. The
premium/discount on debt securities is amortised by
the effective rate method with the amortised amount
presented as an adjustment to the interest income.

b) Investment in associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method.

¢) Investments in subsidiary and associate are
accounted for in the separate financial statements
using the cost method.

d) Investments in non-marketable equity securities,
which the Company classifies as other investments,
are stated at cost net of allowance for loss on
diminution in value (if any).

4.6 Equipment and depreciation

Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
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and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference
to it costs using the straight-line basis, over the following
estimated useful lives:-

Leasehold improvements -5 years

Furniture and office equipment -3,5 years
Depreciation and amortization are included in
determining income.

No depreciation has been provided on assets under
installation.

4.7 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that
control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether
directly or indirectly, or which are under common control
with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals
which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors and
officers with authority in the planning and direction of
the Company’s operations.

4.8 Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lower of the
fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables, while the interest element is charged
to the income statements over the lease period. The
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease period.

4.9 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
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Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in
determining income.

4.10 Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company performs
impairment reviews in respect of equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset
may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when
the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use,
is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by a
valuation model that, based on information available,
reflects the amount that the Company could obtain from
the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting
the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income

statement.

4.11 Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social
security fund and provident fund are recognized as
expenses when incurred.

4.12 Provisions
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Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

4.13 Income tax

Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the
taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation.

5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles at times
requires management to make subjective judgments and
estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.
These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts
results could differ.

and disclosures and actual

Significant judgments and estimates are as follows:

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an
operating lease or finance lease, the management is
required to use judgment regarding whether significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has
been transferred, taking into consideration terms and
conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the
management needs to make judgment and estimates
based upon, among other things, past collection history,
aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing
economic condition.
Equipment/Depreciation

of the

In determining depreciation equipment,
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management is required to make estimates of the useful
lives and salvage values of the Company’s equipment
and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values
when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review
equipment for impairment on a periodical basis and
record impairment losses in the period when it is
determined that their recoverable amount is lower than
the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding
forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the

assets subject to the review.

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years, the Company and its subsidiary had
significant business transactions with related parties,
which have been concluded on commercial terms and
bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of business
between the Company and those companies. Below is a

summary of those transactions.

(ae: )
(Unit : Million Baht)
JUMIRUTIN
Consolidated JUMIRUMNIZAINS uTotnemvuasia
financial statements Separate financial statements Pricing policy
2551 2550 2551 2550
2008 2007 2008 2007
semsgstetuuEnifeteaty
Transactions with related companies
510 1dnamsneduduazIfusms 514 58.5 NUNBINR 6.1
Sales and service income Note 6.1
mldnelumsnenazusms 243 19.8 26 26 audaandaiiyliamudonly
Selling and administrative expenses ﬂﬂaﬁi i)
Contract price, which is price in the
ordinary course of business
6.1 MIveFUAITIN umwmmﬂﬁunumnﬁﬂsdau 6.1  Sales prices are determined based on cost plus a

A Y a o o &£
iy wazms TRusmssmuanmaudayandaiuly

margin while price of service are based on the contract
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price, which is price in the ordinary course of business.
However pricing depends on the type of product or
service and the pricing policy may change according to
the type of business and the market situation at the time
of the transaction.

The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2008
and 2007 between the Company and those related

companies are as follows:

(M8 VM)

(Unit: Baht)

IUMIRUTIN IWUMIRURWIZAINS
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2551 2550 2551 2550
2008 2007 2008 2007
gouiin1af - Ransiiimeadesii
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
ST Wiidies vewes 1fia - 1,353,008 - -
Premier Motors Company Limited
v3 wiidles Saesn nazd $1ia - 601,084 - -
Premier Resort Krabi Limited
v55m ledAae navesmes $ifia - 379,088 - -
IQA Laboratory Company Limited
vi waiiles Fadu undilaea $1ia 6,592 210,761 - -
Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
V510 @3 wiile $1im 86,488 218,986 - -
Seri Premier Company Limited
Vi wided ndiiane 15 - 183,259 - -
Premier Marketing Company Limited
ST Widies mexﬂﬂmaéq 3190 30,677 114,404 - -
Premier Manufacturing Company Limited
uSTm Widies i Insiia 179,660 - - -
Premier Metrobus Co., Ltd.
Suq 106,858 15,516 - -
Others
sganHMIA - Hamsiiieaveaiiu 410,275 3,076,106 - -
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties
fuiasreiu - demsiimeadesiv
Deposit on share - related party
V3 Waiiled Tlwdu unillaea $1ia - 18,100,000 - 18,100,000
Premier Fission Capital Company Limited
gouiimudyanToudnsidanios -
fonnsilineadesi
Account receivable from transfer of rights of claim - related
519015z 2551 % Annual Report 2008
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Consolidated financial statements

(Mi9: 1)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMSHUTIY JUMTRURNIZAIMS

Separate financial statements

party
Ao oA g A o o
VIHN WIWYT LLﬂJHLL‘V‘Iﬂ!ﬂﬂiQ NA
Premier Manufacturing Company Limited

wn: M lsnnmsnetuainusesud

[se]
D
i
—

[se3
(=3
=3
o0

34,000,000

(34,000,000)

(s
D
3
[}
(sl

55

—
(sl

55

f==)

(=3
(=3
=3
~
[s=3

00

o0
[s=3

00

~

85,000,000 34,000,000 85,000,000

(85,000,000) (34,000,000) (85,000,000)

Less : Deferred gain from sales of investments
S o S o aa w
‘i'JNQﬂﬁuﬂ]uﬁi}l]%}l]ﬂﬂuﬁﬂﬁ!iﬂﬂiﬂﬁ -

a P Y] =
NANMINNYIVBINY — gNB

Total account receivable from transfer of rights of claim -

related party — net

Y Aa ARy o
[HUNINITNUNYIVOINU

Amounts due to related parties
a o N A A s A o o
VIHN WINPT TTHDIN NITU 91NA
Seri Premier Company Limited
a o a o 4 Y o w
VIEN AT LFURADT LULUAUUUN 1NA
Seri Center Management Company Limited

A
U9

36,259 - - -

19,

- 468,078 - -

850 45,671 - -

Others

Y A )
FINDHUNINMINNYIVBINY

56,

109 513,749 - -

Total amounts due to related parties

9

gnviilnudya loy

a

Ansi3enied — nan1sNNEIT0

Accounts receivable from transfer of rights of claim -
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related party

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company sold

investments in  two  subsidiaries to  Premier
Manufacturing Company Limited with a gain on the sale
of the investments amounting to Baht 143.6 million. The
Company also transferred to the related company rights
of claim in loans and receivable of Premier CE Company
Limited and Premier Home Appliance Company
Limited, with balances as at 30 November 2005,
amounting to Baht 70 million and Baht 20 million,
respectively, for which it is to receive remuneration
amounting to Baht 90 million. The Company has

received partial remuneration of Baht 5 million, and the
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balance of Baht 85 million was recorded as account
receivable from transfer of rights of claim - related party.
Such remuneration, on which no interest is charged, is to
be paid in 5 annual installments of Baht 17 million each,
commencing from 1 December 2006. However, for
reasons of prudence, the Company has deferred the
recognition of the gains on sale of the Baht 85 million of

the investments until the payment is received.

During the first quarter of 2008 the Company transferred
Baht 17 million of accounts receivable from transfer of
rights of claim to net it with the amount payable to a
related company for a share purchase (as discussed in
note 9). And during the year 2008 the Company received
remuneration of Baht 34 million from the above related
company and thus recognised a deferred gain of Baht 51

million in shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

Directors and management’s remuneration
In 2008 the Company and its subsidiary paid salaries,

meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and
management totaling Baht 32.4 million (The Company
only: Baht 0.7 million) (2007: Baht 28.7 million, The

Company only: Baht 0.4 million).

7. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable as
at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are aged based on due

date as follows:
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Ages of receivable
a 44 9 o
NINTNLNYIVDINY

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

R o
ﬂ\illllﬂ\iﬂW“ﬂuﬂ“]fliz
Not yet due
Y o
ANWBITS
Past due
T3l 3 ifou
Within 3 months
3-61PoU
3 - 6 months
6-121AoU
6 - 12 months
' =
yINNI 12 1ADU

Longer than 12 months

UMSEUIIY

Consolidated

(M1e: 1)

(Unit: Baht)

[oe]
D
i
—

[so3
=3
o0

69,010

320,304

15,280

5,681

153
3
3
=}

[so3
=3
(=3
~

199,309

2,876,797

37U
Total
o A
wn: mmawumaawqty
Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts
qni
Net
a Ay 1 d Y o
ﬂﬂﬂﬁ‘l’llllllﬂﬂ?mﬂdﬂu
Unrelated parties
o 122 o o
Falidemmuadnge
Not yet due
Y o
ANWBITS
Past due
TiiiAu 3 ifou
Within 3 months
3-61f0U
3 - 6 months
6- 12 1hoU
6 - 12 months
' =)
UINNI 12 1Y

Longer than 12 months

s1ealszdnl 2551

410,275

3,076,106

410,275

3,076,106

234,654,309

94,753,182

8,900,016

12,210,043

22,600,713

225,306,569

148,548,126

9,625,271

2,140,108

7,826,604
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Total
o A
Hn: ﬂHWﬂﬂuﬁ\iﬁﬂﬂ%qﬂJ
Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts
qns
Net
v
= Y Y a
ANUUNIININIIAT — q‘VIﬁ

Trade accounts receivable - net

(Md29: 1)
(Unit: Baht)
JUMITRUTIN
Consolidated
2551 2550
2008 2007
373,118,263 393,446,678
(13,097,061) (7,916,172)
360,021,202 385,530,506
360,431,477 388,606,612

4 v
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The balance of trade accounts receivable as at 31
December 2007 included trade receivables amounting to
Baht 23.7 million which the subsidiary has assigned its
rights over collection to factoring company in accordance
with the factoring agreements with interest as stipulated
in the agreements. If the assignee is unable to make
collection from the subsidiary’s debtors, the subsidiary
agrees to pay the outstanding debt balances to the

assignee.
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8. INVENTORIES

(Y99 UIN)

(Unit: Baht)

VMUY

Consolidated financial statements

AnHomIanasvoIyamduAInunde

Allowance of diminution in value of inventories

aasmuasli
MIAUYanIgNd
fivz 145
I Reduction cost to Fufudounmnn dumnunio — gnd
Cost Net realizable value Stock obsolescence Inventories — net
2551 2550 2551 2550 2551 2550 2551 2550
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
auﬁWﬁu%‘i}gﬂ 101,943,527 50,603,448 (109,745) (109,745) (4,656,162)  (1,089,532) 97,177,620 49,404,171
Finish goods
AuMsgninme 11,240,980 8,773,179 - - - - 11,240,980 8,773,179
Goods in transit
39U 113,184,507 59,376,627  (109,745) (109,745) (4,656,162)  (1,089,532) 108,418,600 58,177,350
Total

9. Quasnuluusinden

9. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

(M9: 1)
FouStn nuSonszuda dadIuRuaInu EALRI
Company’s name Paid-up capital Shareholding percentage Cost
2551 2550 2551 2550 2551 2550
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Wuum Wuum $ovaz(%)  Fovaz(%)
Thousand Baht ~ Thousand Baht
U3t a1 T1ls aeuiunesFadud S1da 30,000 30,000 100 80 255,887,200 220,787,200
Datapro Computer Systems Company Limited
Win: Aiemsdeemiduasnuluusindes (103,160,339) (103,160,339
Less : Provision for loss in value of investments in subsidiary
swRuasulusindes - qnd 152,726,861 117,626,861
Investments in subsidiary — net
519015z 2551 101 Annual Report 2008




uren wres malula@ fiin coktew

Tuszrnalasunanuiiavest) 2551 vsEnalasulon

9 o a o Y a I a < g
HUTTWYUDIUTEN ﬂ"l?ﬂiﬂi ADUNAUADT FALANT

oA J

3199 91nUTHN W35 Wysu umlileea 310a 911U

a I
60,000 4u (Aarduiooaz 20 vesnuvanzifon) lu

ImRuaz 585 U adudusau 35.1 dwum

o

o ' o & Y A ao
ﬁwmimﬂimﬁlu"lﬂmmngngwamﬂnuwmywm

@

ST

o

naana1uil 2549 v5EMIRIETITRUTATIAY
4

Husiwau 18.1 dmumludl 2550 naz 1dTougnuil
awdyanToudandiSondesduiu 17.0 Frunm tive
o Y A A S & =
Wumssrszaruaruinielulasuainiivedd

2551 (muiina1 13 lunuema 6)

]
[

Lﬁ't‘)’J‘LW] 29 nINQINN 2551 ﬁﬂigﬂﬂlﬂmgﬂiillﬂﬁ“llﬂﬂ

vitmdes ldludewianstieuilunasyritenia
dmsvuil 2551 Tasnreliungnoulusasiduas 90

a o 9 a o 1 k4
v saudududiuon 27 & uan uiiveesd

neRuilunadinanludeudanay 2551

10.  Ruamuluuienim

@
@

Tuszni1all 2551 v5naldasulufuanigues

a o 3 4 o = o @ o
VSHN udanud lawes malulad  $1da $1u7u
Al usuawdu 2.0 S1uum v

a

A A

IS
52,000 Fona1llu
dadnumnuiosaz 26 vesnuaanziou Tagusen
aanan ldisendrszanjuminudosas 37.5 veanuaa
neiion
vsEnaenasusuivaulu@ounainy 2551 U5
arurmdiuntat lsvranuluuiiniauiney
msuntam lagieuivs edmnetlsvanu
<3 o A Ay 1 g o w a o = T KR
Wudwaudun lidumsediay visnavaliiudin
emsaananluaumstudmsvil 2551 uSEnade

dyadrveuiuasnulifinnuuanaisesiuilu

AT UHINAIULLIAINAIATUIUIINILNITIIY

o

2 9y A Y o A
"INIlﬂillﬂ"lifél5Uﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ1uﬂ1ﬂﬁjﬁﬂﬂﬂi§‘]§

PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company received
the transfer of 60,000 ordinary shares of Datapro
Computer System Company Limited from Premier
Fission Capital Company Limited, or equivalent to 20
percent of its registered capital, at a price of Baht 585 per
share, for a total of Baht 35.1 million. The above
transaction is in accordance with a share purchase and
sale agreement made in 2006 with such company. The
Company paid Baht 18.1 million as a deposit for share
purchase in 2007 and transferred Baht 17.0 million of
accounts receivable from transfer of rights of claim to net
with the outstanding balance of share purchase during the
first quarter of 2008 (as discussed in note 6).

On 29 July 2008, a meeting of subsidiary’s Board of
Directors approved the payment of interim dividend for
2008 of Baht 27 million to the shareholders at Baht 90
per share. The subsidiary paid such dividend in August
2008.

10. Investment in associate

During the year 2008, the Company acquired 52,000
ordinary shares, amounting to Baht 2.0 million, or a 26
percent equity interest, in Advance Cyber Technology
Company Limited, which called up 37.5 percent of the

registered value of the shares.

This company commence its operation on October 2008
and the Company calculated the share of profit/loss from
investment in associate from financial statements which
prepared by its management. Such amount is not
significant and so the Company did not recognise it in the
financial statements of 2008. The Company believes that
the value of the investment would not significantly differ

if the financial statements had been audited or reviewed

by an auditor.
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12. gilnsal

IIMNU

Cost

Suit 31 Sunaw 2550
31 December 2007
%ﬁ]lﬁn

Additions

e

Disposals

Towdn

Transfer in

Touoon

Transfer out

$ufi 31 Funaw 2551
31 December 2008
Aidensmazay
Accumualted depreciation
Suil 31 Sunaw 2550

31 December 2007

19915291 2551

11. Other long-term investment

As at 31 December 2008, other long-term investment of

the Company amounting to Baht 10 million is investment

in bond issued by a bank and classified as investment in

debt security, expected to be held to maturity.

12. EQUIPMENT

(¥99: V)
(Unit : Baht)

VMUY

Consolidated financial statements

nIomnAaE  aunsndiznin
ginsaidninau And
Furniure and Assets under 33U
Office equipment installation Total
366,673,926 70,200 366,744,126
54,782,338 653,020 55,435,358
(40,140,970) - (40,140,970)
723,220 - 723,220
- (723,220) (723,220)
382,038,514 - 382,038,514
242,642,981 - 242,642,981
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Andousadmsui
Depreciation for the year
Andousimdmsudiuis e
Depreciation disposals
$ufi 31 funnw 2551
31 December 2008
yamgNEMNTYY

Net book value

$ufi 31 $unnw 2550
31 December 2007

$ufi 31 funnw 2551
31 December 2008
AdousImdmsuil

Depreciation for the year

VMUY

(¥99: V)

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

112550 (37 dAuum sawmegludunumsuims dauimassweglualdielumsuims)

2007 (Baht 37 million included in service cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

INTIANUAIEAE  AUNSNITENIN
ginsaidninau And
Furniure and Assets under 33U
Office equipment installation Total
67,577,665 - 67,577,665
(39,499,074) - (39,499,074)
270,721,572 - 270,721,572
124,030,945 70,200 124,101,145
111,316,942 - 111,316,942
64,514,499
67,577,665

112551 (38 Aum swegludunumsuims daimassweglualdielumsuims)

2008 (Baht 38 million included in service cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

19915291 2551
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]
A

U 31 FUNAY 2550
31 December 2007
“ﬁlﬂlﬁll

Additions

Suit 31 Sunaw 2551
31 December 2008
Aidensmazay
Accumulated depreciation
Suit 31 Sunaw 2550
31 December 2007
Andeusiadmiull
Depreciation for the year
Suii 31 Sunaw 2551
31 December 2008
yamgnsmuUny

Net book value

1
o A

JUN 31 FUNAN 2550 (31 Decmber 2007)
JUN 31 5UNAN 2551 (31 December 2008)

\ d‘ o v A 1 LAl )
auaensIMdE MU (sameglumldnelumsuing)
Depreciation for the year (include in administrative expenses)

7/ 2550 (2007)

3l 2551 (2008)
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(WU28: UIN)

(Unit : Baht)

IUMTRURNIZAINS
Separate financial

statements

IATRINNLAILIAL
o o
gUnsaldninam
Furniture and office

equipment

2,234

29,439

31,673

222

1,561

1,783

2,012

29,890

222

1,561
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a o dw <3 ° a
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13.  Qufuszazaunnaoiumsiu

a YA g
LQuQﬂﬂJﬁZﬂZﬁu
Short-term loan
33U

Total

' v
2 U 31 Funew 2551 Qutuszezdunindaniu
Ed
M3RuveUTENGoes I 10 A1 Aaaemiiylu

80131 MLR @01

a YN
14. {QUPBNISULEN
a YN a o U d! 1 n‘d 13
NURINTLYSYIVDIVITHNYDYFITINTAIUNOINIVIUA

¥ v
Hr5zmelunitadl Usenoudiesrenmsasse i

As at 31 December 2008, the subsidiary had equipment
under finance lease agreements with net book values

amounting to Baht 56.1 million (2007: Baht 59.6 million).

As at 31 December 2008, certain equipment items of the
subsidiary have been fully depreciated but are still in use.
The original cost, before deducting accumulated
depreciation, of those assets amounted to Baht 129.7

million (2007: Baht 126.6 million).

13. Short-term loan from financial institution

(W128: 1N)
(Unit : Baht)
VMUY

Consolidated financial statements

2551 2550

2008 2007
10,000,000 -
10,000,000 -

As at 31 December 2008, Baht 10 million short-term loan
from financial institution of a subsidiary carries interest at

the rate of MLR per annum.

14. LONG-TERM LOANS
Long-term loans (including current portion) of a

subsidiary consist of the followings:
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RUoNIzeze19INFUING
Long-term loans from banks

a YA A

NUNINITSYIZY1IDY

Other long-term loans

77U

Total

o ' A= o ° & ~
Wn: dawndesdvuatisenmelunig

Less: Current portion

a YA a 1 AR o o & =
NUNYINITSIZYI — qmmﬂmuwmmwuﬂﬁmnmﬂiuwmﬂ

Long-term loans - net of current portion

(Mig: 1)
(Unit: Baht)
UMSIEUIIY

Consolidated financial statements

2551 2550
2008 2007
- 3,000,000
8,358,982 3,549,806
8,358,982 6,549,806
(4,821,093) (4,863,263)
3,537,889 1,686,543

Audbuszozenannsuimsvesusindeoilutuddy
awdaandseilszuonseunnuasiud 11 wwioy
2544 fusas luszmauianile ileroufuns
Hr3ztudunnSuidniuind Taodousiszautu
dudruau 40 Auvimdusielasuanielu 79
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Long-term loan from bank of the subsidiary is a long-
term loan under a composition agreement with a local
commercial bank, dated 11 April 2001, under which the
terms of repayment of a defaulted bank overdraft were
relaxed. The principal of Baht 40 million is to be repaid
in quarterly installments within 7 years from July 2001,
together with interest charged at MLR per annum. During
the year 2008, the subsidiary completed payment of such
loan.

Other long-term loans of the subsidiary represent loans
obtained from a company for use in the purchase of assets
of the subsidiary. The loans are to be repaid in monthly
installments within 3 years from the dates specified in the
agreements, together with interest as stipulated in the

agreements.

15. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities (including current portion) of the

subsidiary consist of the followings:
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(Mae: UM)
(Unit : Baht)
UMSIEUIIY

Consolidated financial statements

2551 2550
2008 2007
niAuA WA IFIMIMIRU - gnsoinasniesedntie 74,412,590 70,923,596
Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net of deferred interest
y 2 &
WU 65,607
Hire purchase payable
ket 74,412,590 70,989,203
Total
o T = ) & o
¥n: duddeimuadszmeluniiedl (40,276,984) (38,974,427)
Less : Current portion
wilduszezen — gnivindrundsimuasiszateluniledl 34,135,606 32,014,776
Long-term liabilities - net of current portion
awll/lﬂ/ow ' a A s A q9 . .
UTHNYDY ﬂ‘l/lm'tlJuﬂJW]ﬂmiNulWE)lmqﬂﬂiml‘WE)%f A subsidiary has entered into the finance lease

o a a o o ' 1o
1uﬂ15ﬂ1luuﬂ§]f‘ﬂiiﬂﬂﬁf‘ﬂﬁuﬂﬂ15ﬂﬂ§3ﬂ“"}ﬂlﬂu513
A o = A =
iU 01guosdylszeznar laomaeslszum 39

nazdyandanariiludayanivendn la'ld

]
=t

2 TN 31 FunAN 2551 USHNdeslMTTENTUN

k4 v 4
deenieannTudmudyyuinsuail

9 ' [ 9 4
yamiagtiuvesiautududindestensauaudygua

Presenvalue of future minimum lease payments
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agreements with leasing companies for rental of
equipment for use in its operation, whereby it is
committed to pay rental on a monthly basis. The terms of
the agreements are generally 3 years. Finance lease
agreements are non-cancelable.

As at 31 December 2008, Future minimum lease

payments required under the finance lease agreements

were as follows:

(MUY : 1IN
(Unit: Million Baht)

Taitdn 19

1-51) 39U
Less than 1 1-5 years Total
year
40.3 34.1 74.4
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16. wiH@uszazamaaumuiuyions 16. LONG-TERM  LIABILITIES

UNDER

REHABILITATION PLAN

a

a0 U 31 SUNAY 2551 1A 2550 HHAUTE 2812 As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the outstanding long-

9

Wunanas

U

)3

9
menaansUsulaseadanfiauuny term liabilities restructured under the rehabilitation plan

ﬂizﬂ@‘uﬁliﬂ are as follows:

(Mu2g: 11M)
(Unit: Baht)
IWMIEUTIWARNIZNINT
Consolidated financial statements/
Separate financial statements
2551 2550
2008 2007
y 2 9 Fa g -
mmuﬁvumu“luwuuuquazmmﬁmqmmu
Senior creditors of loans and financial instruments :
v 1 . 1
Auduiifmuadiszaunn 6 deu melu 10 hiudwafuimaliidaiureudrounuisiiga Jszezna 4,000,000 6,000,000
Ed . Ed v
daoatseniidudu 33 (Sudszaudaail 2547) Taslionsinendososas 6 nell n3e MLR 1diug
a1 laazding
- Principal is to be repaid in semi-annual installments within 10 years from the date the court issues its final
order approving the plan, with a grace period of 3 years (repayment as from the year 2004). Interest is charged at
the lower of 6 percent per annum or MLR.
»
19n: aeniiettesesui lueuian 202,521 477,042
Add : Interest expenses pending recognition in future year
£ A& A
niauszezamuuuunams 4,202,521 6,477,042
Long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan
o ' A= o ) &£
¥n: duddeimuadszmeluniiedl (2,153,699) (2,274,521)
Less : Current portion
2 A& A a
niauszezemuunuluioms - qns
1 A o o &£
Nnawnnasuatiseateluniiell 2,048,822 4,202,521
Long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan - net of current portion

Y a d‘d a v 1
17. fuvesusimanaelaaustingoes
2 Jufl 31 FunaN 2551 RuueusEnanine Iagusem
I A A ] A PR
doalisuaunuman 230,175 yuyannast 13quaz 1
VN (2550: 230,175 }u yasrnas1 13guaz 10 un)
Taouaauilunemsinluduvesdienudiosiniu

Y
VBN U
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17. COMPANY’S SHARE HELD BY SUBSIDIARY
At 31 December 2008, 230,175 shares with a par value
of Baht 1 each (2007 : 230,175 shares with a par value of
Baht 10 each) of the Company were held by subsidiary.
They are presented as a deduction in shareholders’ equity

and are stated at cost.
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18. STATUTORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Company
Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside a
statutory reserve of at least 5 percent of its net income
after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if
any) until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered
share capital. The statutory reserve is not available for

dividend distribution.

19. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follow:

(WU28: UIN)
(Unit: Baht)

VMUY JUMTRURNIZNING

Consolidated Separate

financial statements

financial statements

2551 2550 2551 2550
2008 2007 2008 2007
Ruideuuas waﬂiziﬂﬁvﬁﬁmmwﬁmm 343,823,652 303,017,634 740,000 388,000
Salary and other employee benefits
ﬂ'u?'ramwn 67,577,665 64,514,499 1,561 222
Depreciation
A 16,435,090 15,827,507 - -
Rental expenses
%@ﬁu% 1,114,461,134 915,734,890 - -
Purchase of goods
manlasunlaslududduiagl (51,340,079) 8,306,599 - -

Changes in finished goods

20. mEdWIdTAYAna

yaa 9 2

v3Ena liinseasiulanauanadinsuil 2551

&l

Y =\

d'l Y a Y v a Y
inenngeldtuilunaldsven i uadiaulaniy

W1A31 65 N3 (10) MN5ENIATHYINS

20. Corporate income tax
No corporate income tax was payable for the year 2008
since dividend income is exempted from income tax

under section 65 bis (10) of the Revenue Code.
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21. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
income (loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year after
deducting the number of shares of the Company held by

a subsidiary.

22. DIVIDEND PAID

On 26 April 2007, the Annual General Meeting of the
Company’s shareholders passed a resolution approving
the payment of a dividend of Baht 0.10 per share to the
Company’s shareholders from the Company's income for
the year 2006, a total of Baht 14.2 million. The dividend

was paid in May 2007.

23. Commitments
As at 31 December 2008, the Company and its subsidiary

have commitments as follows:

23.1 Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into several lease agreements
in respect of the lease of building, office space and related
services. The terms of the agreements are generally
between 1 and 13 years.

As at 31 December 2008, future minimum lease payments
required under these non-cancellable operating leases

contracts were as follows.

AU
Million Baht
14.8
14.0
74
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23.2 Long-term service commitments

The Company and its subsidiary have entered into
management service agreements with a related company,
whereby management fees totaling Baht 0.7 million per
month are payable in the future, with Baht 0.2 million per
month payable by the Company. The agreements end in
December 2009 but they automatically renew for periods

of one year each time until terminated.

23.3 Guarantee

The subsidiary has commitments of Baht 43.4 million
(2007: Baht 33.3 million) in respect of bank guarantee
issued by banks on behalf of the subsidiary in respect of
certain performance bonds as required in the normal
course of business. All of letters of guarantee relate to
guarantee contractual performance.

A Baht 49.9 million (2007: Baht 35.5 million) fixed bank
deposits of the subsidiary have been pledged with banks
to secure those bank guarantees and the facilities as

discuss in note 24.

24. FACILITIES FROM FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION

The subsidiary has been granted various types of credit

facilities, by a financial institution of which Baht 53.7

million has not been utilized. Most of the facilities have

been guaranteed by a part of fixed deposits with bank of

the subsidiary.

25. PROVIDENT FUND

The subsidiary and its employees have jointly established
a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund
Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the subsidiary

contributed to the fund monthly at the rate of 5 percent of
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basic salary. The fund, which is managed by TISCO
Assets Management Company Limited, will be paid to
employees upon termination in accordance with the fund
rules. During the year 2008, the subsidiary contributed
Baht 7.1 million (2006: Baht 6.7 million) to the fund.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26.1 Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under
Thai 48

Accounting  Standard  No. “Financial

Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts
receivable, investments, and long-term loans. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments
and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The subsidiary is exposed to credit risk primarily with
respect to trade accounts receivable. The subsidiary
manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control
policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to
incur material financial losses. In addition, the subsidiary
does not have high concentration of credit risk since it
has a large customer base. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of

receivables as stated in the balance sheet.

Interest rate risk
The Company and its subsidiary’s exposure to interest
rate risk relates primarily to their cash at banks, bank

overdrafts, factoring, long-term loans, long-term

liabilities and interest bearing liabilities under

rehabilitation plan. However, since most of the Company
and its subsidiary’s financial assets and liabilities bear

floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are

19915291 2551

113

Annual Report 2008




uren wres malula@ fiin coktew

PREMIER TECHNOLOGY PUBLIC COMPANY

v Ea
ANUABIINEATIADNITEVIUTHNAaz DS EN08T close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected
[l o o a o awo =X aly 9Jq ¥ -
pgluszaud UFEnanazuTEndesvdl 1d19ns1a1s to be minimal.

4
v J

AYWUTINOUTHITANUITSIINDATIADATIIAINEA

a

Do

@ @

b4
a o d a
UNAY 2551 gunsnauazniaunians

MIAIUN 3] 5 Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31
v 9
RundAyavIsaIanulszinnonsiaonie uay December 2008 classified by type of interest rates are

Ea v Ea
MUSVAUNT NI H T AUNWIMIIUNTEAT 1NN 8

]
=t

AN AT AUENAINIUNATURIMUA HTe TUNUMS

v v
fruaonsiaenelvy (M1nTuRTNMsHIvuaons)

summarized in the table below, with those financial
assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on the maturity date, or the reprising

4 4
[ U Y v . . .
aonilialvina nNou) {EENT date if this occurs before the maturity date.

IUMIRUTIN
Consolidated financial statements
Sasimenitionsdi
Fixed interest rates il mmamﬁy ]
malu W 1 wINNN NENCIIES il 51
11 fasil 57 awsImAmA  SanAonife 320 o
Within 1-5 Over Floating Non —interest
1 year years 5 years Interest rate bearing Total Interest rate
@wmm) ($ovazaeil)
(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
FunSndmanisiiu
Financial Assets
[uaatarsemMsieUnIuan 30 - - 45 - 75 0.5-7.5, 3.05
Cash and cash equivalent
gnwﬁyﬂﬁﬁ'w - - - - 373 373 -
Trade accounts receivable
GurhneofumsGuiiinszgni - - - 50 - 50 1.35-1.40
Deposits at financial institutions with restrictions
30 - - 95 373 498
WHaumMan3y
Financial liabilities
v
RufenszezduanaaniumsQu - - - 10 - 10 MLR
Short-term loan from financial institution
Bmiimsdn - - - - 265 265 -
Trade accounts payable
Judiuszezenou 5 3 - - - 8 33
Other long - term loans
wilduszezon 40 34 - - - 74 1-13
Long-term liabilities
wﬁyﬁuizﬂzmmmuwuﬁuﬁdﬁ%ms - - - 4 - 4 NN 16
Long-term liabilities under rehabilitation plan Note 16
45 37 - 14 265 361
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Foreign currency risk

The subsidiary’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises
mainly from trading transactions that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As at 31 December 2008, the
subsidiary had the net foreign currency - denominated
liabilities, amounting to USD 1.4 million (2007: USD 0.7
million) which had not been hedged against foreign
exchange rate risk.

26.2 Fair values of financial instruments

As the majority of financial assets are short-term and
long-term financial liabilities carry interest rates which
close to or lower than market rates, the management of
the Company and its subsidiary believe that fair value of
their financial assets and liabilities does not materially
differ from their carrying value.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be
exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair
value is determined by reference to the market price of
the financial instrument or by using an appropriate
valuation technique, depending on the nature of the

instrument.

27. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The Company and its subsidiary’s operations involve a
single industry segment, information and
communications technology, and are carried on in the
single geographic area of Thailand. As a result, all of the
revenues, operating income (loss) and assets reflected in
these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned

industry segment and geographic area.
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28. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s

capital

management is to ensure that it has an appropriate
financial structure and preserves the ability to continue its
business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008,

the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 2.3:1 (2007: 2.7:1).

29. Reclassification

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007 have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s classification but with no
effect to previously reported net income or shareholders'

equity. The reclassifications are as follows:

(W128: VIN)
(Unit : Baht)

A %
Gﬂlmlﬂﬂﬂﬂ\ﬂuhh

As reclassified As previously reported

124,101,145 137,201,857

19,123,346 6,022,634

30. Subsequent events

On 19 February 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors
passed a resolution to propose the shareholder to approve
the payment of a dividend of Baht 0.10 per share to the
Company’s shareholders from the Company's income for
the year 2008, a total of Baht 14.2 million. The dividend
will be paid in May 2009.

31. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were authorized for issue by

the Company’s Board of Directors on 19 February 2009.
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MALINUVDITOURYT Audit Fee
1. MAdUUNUNINMsToUTYTUYT (Audit Fee) 1. Audit Fee
VTENUAZUTHNGD8T18A 1N VLN UNITAD U By ¥ The Company and its subsidiary paid audit fee as
Tun follows:
- é’ﬁauﬁty%maw?ﬁm ”luﬁau‘ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁvhumﬁ - The Company’s auditor for the year 2008 in an
MUIUEUITIN 0 VN amount Baht 0
- §uinnudeuiyFidaeuiyideta yana - Auditor’s firm for the year 2008 in an amount of
wieRamainoadosfudaeuiinFuazdnin Baht 1,010,000.

@

i
da'sl v A v @ | s
NuapuliyFNgaeliyydina luseuiiiyd

ARUINTIUIWTUTIN 1,010,000 VN

2. MU3IMI0H (Non-Audit Fee) 2. Non-Audit Fee
-llil'fl - - None -
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